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Never in the history of British North
America has there been such a news-
paper success as the STAR. Its
supremacy is fully and freely acknow-
ledged by all the other first-class
newspapers of Canada,
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BUSINESS IIOUSES OF MONTREAL.

THE
MONTREAL
WITNESS

s1as for the past half century
%] Dbeen a leading power in
Canadian Journalism, giving all
the news worth giving, and invari-
ably found giving an independent
support to the right side of all
public questions. It is free from
all political and financial influences.
Its friends are many and its
influence great. It is alone in its
ficld, and its high class character
makes it a most valuable adver-
tising medium. Like its news, its
advertisements must be of good
chardcter, !
Daily Witness, $3.00 per annum,
Weekly = .00 «
Messenger, .30 i
Worid Wide, a5 2,

——

JOB PRINTING

of every description,
Electrotyping, Stereotyping, Eteh-
ing, Engraving and Half Tone well
and quickly execcuted at reasonable
rates. .
JOHN DOUGALL & SON,
Propriztors and Publishers.
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MONTREAL PAST AND PRESENT.
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“Mhe wolf aleo shall dwell with the lamb, aud the leopard shail lie

down with the kid ; and the ealf and the young lion and the fatling
together ; and a little chilil shall lead them. " —Isaiah,

Rose-wreath and flenr-de-lys
Shampoel and thistle be
Joined to the maple tree
Now and for aye.
— Joh Reade.

The City of Monireil, the commercial metropolis of the
Dominion of Canada, is built on an island of the same name formed
by the River Ottawa dehonching into the River St Lawrence, at its
western and eastern extremities, the former near St. Ann's, 21 miles
from Montreal, the latter at Bouf de I'lle, This island is triangolar
in shape, and is about thirty miles long and ten broad, situated in
latitude 45° 31' North, and Loagitulde 78° 33 West, and 250 miles
above salt water.

Montreal was fouaded oa the 8th of May, 1642, by Maisonneuve,
107 years after the visit of Jacgues Cartier and his crew in 1535,
Jacques Cartier was the first uropean who yisited the locality. On
the arrival of Jacques Cavijsr there was an Indian village ealled
Hochelage on the site of the Montreal of to-day. The village was
aitusted where the Engiish Cathedral, at the Corner of University
and 8t Catarine Streets, now stands. VWhat is now oowil 8s
Hochelaga was for many yeirs a TFrench towm, two miles east of
Monireal, but is now joined to the City of Monireal.

On the 2nd day of October, 1535, Jacques Qartier 1anded at Hoche-
laga. Being conducted through tha towa by the friendly Indians
they next guided him to the top of the Mountain, and he was S50
struck with the beauty ef the situation that he named the mountain
“ Mount Royal.”
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. Our local historian, Mr, Lighthall, Mayor of Westmount, follow-
ing the example of the author of Knickerbocker's History of New
York. goes back some hundred million years ago, when the site of
our Metropolis was in the bottom of a gulf, then he traces up the
development of the elevation of the crust throuzgh the formation of
sublerranean fires and finally the levelling off of the tep of the
mountain by a huge iceberg. If he could only tell us where the
“iceberg " dropped off the broken pieces we would be still more
indebted to him. The space at our disposal for this edition will
not permit us to go farther back than Jacgques Cartier's visit, and
quote his description of the Montreal of that day, nearly five hun-
dred years ago. The population then was about 1,500 people. After
relating the hospitable reception he received and the exchange of
presents, he proceeds as follows :—* The lands were tilled in large
fields of corn. In the midst of those fields is situated the said town
of Hochelaga, near and adjoining the mountain, . . . . The said
town is guite round, and palisaded with wood in three rows, in the
form of a pyramid, interlaced abova, having the middle row in
perpendicular, then lined with wood laid along, well joined and
corded in a style of their own, and is of the height of about two
lances. There is in the town but one gate and entranee, which
shuts with bars, on which, and in several places on said palisade, is
a kind of gallery, with ladders to mount them which are furnished
with rocks and stones for the guard and defence thereof. There are
in that town about fifty houses, each at most about fifty paces long
and twelve or fifteen paces wide, all made of wood, covered and
furnished in great pieces of bark as large as tables, well sewel
artificially after their manner ; and in them are several halls and
chambers, and in the middle of said houses is a great hall on the
ground, where they make their fires and live in common ; then they
retire to their said chambers, the men with their wives and children.
And likewise they have granaries above their houses where they
put their corn, whereof fthey make their liread which they call
“ Caracom.”

Champlain visited the place in 1611—76 years afte-r Jacques
Cartier’s visit, and founded a trading post on the site of the old
Custom House Square—renamed a few years ago * La Place Royale.”

There are several legends and traditions about old Hochelaga
and the misfortune of its original inhabitants,
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At the time of Jacques Cartier’s visit the town was flourishing,
and the surrounding district was covered with corn flelds. One
story is to the effect that a Senaca Chief prohibited his son from
marrying a certain maid of his.own tribe. The maid got into a
passion and vowed that she should marry no one except one that
would kill the chief who interfered with her happiness. A young
Huron filled the conditions, and obtained his bride, but the whole of
the two tribes took part afterwards in the quarrel with disastrous
results to the once prosperous and happy citizens of Hochelaga.

The following very interesting legend and prophecy was at one
time very common amongst the Mohawk Indians, though now
barely remembered :(—

Long, long ago there was a great lake where the Island of Mont-
real now stands, and the Mohawks dwelt upon its borders and were
happy. Then bad people came and drove the Indians into the
water, killing many of them ; and the Great Spirit when he saw the
Mohawks so badly treated, raised up a country for them out of the
lake and stocked it with game and fruits and maize, and gave it fo
the Mohawks: but there was no mountain. Then the bad people
came over to the Island and took possession of if, and drove the
Mohawks away to the Isle of Jesus, which they made their hunting
ground. Then when they stood on the shore one evening they saw
a great fire leap up on the island, and there were dreadful peals of
thunder, and terrible flashes of lightning, and all the bad peopie
were killed: and after a while, when the smoke had cleared away,
the Mohawks saw the Mountain, and they went back and took
possession of the Island, where they lived happily until attacked by
the Algonguins and Wyandots. Then the white man came and
drove all the Indians away. This is the legend. There is also a
prophecy that one day the Mohawks shall see the fire break out in
the Mountain again, and that the whole Island of Montreal will sink,
and the great lake again spread over the spot where {he island now
stands. The legends and the prophecy are pretty, and geological
research may show some foundation for the upheaval.

The first clearing for the city was made where the Custom House
now stands. The eity proper is about four and a half miles long
by two broad, and over 200 miles of streets and lanes. Montreal is
215 miles nearer to Liverpool than the city of New York, and one-
third of the whole distance, by way of the St. Lawrence, is in com-
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paratively smooth water, The distance from Montreal to Chicago
by the St. Lawrence system is 185 miles less than the distance from
New York to the same city., Montreal is 334 miles from Boston,
400 miles from New York, 845 miles from Chicago, and 2,750 miies
from Liverpool. :
British troops were stationed at Montreal till 1870. The Barracks
were situated where the €. P. R. Dalhousie Station now stands.
The Military cemetery and powder magazine and store-rooms wore
? on St. Helen's isiand.
Montreal surrendered to the British forces under Generals
Murray and Amhberst on the 8th September, 1760, a year after the
capture of Quebec. It was taken by the Americans on the 12th of
Novemher, 1775, and retaken by the British on the 15th of June,
1776. The Bnglish-speaking portion of the population were so dis-
| gusted with the Rebellion Losses Bill passed by the Liberals in 1847,
that, when the Governor-General, Lord Blgin, entered the Parlia-
ment House (erected where the St Ann's Market now stands) on
the 25th of April to give his assent to the measure, they gathered
together from all guarters of the city, and entering the Parliament
Honse they drove out the members and set fire to the building.
Thaf was the last Parliament held in Montreal,

The census figures were not published as we go to press, but it
is estimated that the population of the eity and suburbs is at least
! | 300,000,

' The population of Montreal proper (Government census of 1881)
was 216,660, or 245,971, including St. Henri, Ste. Cunegonde, Cote et
Anftpine and Mile End. This is over 25 percent inerease during the
last decade. Over one-half of the population are of Frenech, one-
fifth of Irish, one-seventh of English and one-seventeenth of Scoteh
origin (but the one-seventeenth of Scoteh orvigin have-as large a
i share in the enterprise and husiness of Montreal as any of the other
nationalities which form one-half, one-fiith, or one-seventh of the
population), and as to religion, about two-thirds are Roman Cathe-
| lics. The general good feeling existing between parties of different
shades of opinion renders Montreal less subject to party disturban-
ces than other cities of the same population. This rule, of course,
like every other rule, had one or two exceptions ; but the following
! two ingtances show that the above rule has been very well followed.
in the olden times, just after the Conquest, the Protestants used one
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of the Roman Catholic churches after morning mass. For 20
years after 1766, the Church of England people oceupied the Church
of the Recollets every Sunday afternoon. The Presbyterians used
the same church before 1792, and when the congregation moyed o
their first church in St. Gabriel Street, they presented to the priesis
of the Recollet Church a gift of candles for the high altar, and of
wine for the mass. as a token of good-will, and thanks for the
gratuitons use of the church.

The Bonsecours Church was very nigh being swept away a few
years ago to make room for a railway station, but some Protestants,
actuated by a love of the picturesque, and out of regarvd for the
memory of the good Sister by whom it was founded, made such a
noise about it that the Bishop interefered to prevent the sale.

Louis Joseph Papineau, who, with William Lyon Mackenzie, took
the lead in the troubles of 1837-38, had his headguarters in Montreal.

It may beas well to remark here that these two men, Mackenzie
and Papineau, did more for the cause of freedom than any other
two men that ever lived in Canada. Like many other good men
they were not sufficiently honored till they were gone. It is now
admitted by all parties that there was much room for reform in the
government of the day.

On the 9th of June, 1858, Father Gavazzi, a celebrated lecturer,
formerly a famous Roman Catholic priest, lectured against the
Church of Rome in Zion Congregational Church (now Small’s Cloth-
ing Tiouse), and a riot ensued, in which about 40 persons were
either killed or wounded.

One of the most unfortinate events in the history of Montreal
wae the murder of Thomas Hackett, an Orangeman, on the 12th of
July, 1877, by a gang of Fenians, on Victoria Square, near the
Queen’s monument. Several of the bullet shot marks may yet be
seenn in the stone wall at 15 Vietoria Sgnare, opposite the Queen’'s
monument.

The second steamer built on the continent of America was built
af Mentreal, by Mr. John Molson, and was called the * Accommoda-
tion.” She made her first voyage in 36 hours between Montreal and
Quelee, on the rd and 4th November. 1809.

IProm 1685 to 1801 Montreal was surrounded by a wall, extending
along the site of Fortification Lane from Vietoria Sguare to Dal-
housie Square, at the Canadian Pacific Railway Depot. From




16

MONTHEAL DTAST AND PRESENT.
paratively smooth water. The distance from Montreal to Chicago
by the St. Lawrence system is 185 miles less than the distance from
New York to the same city. Montreal is 224 miles from Boston,
400 miles from New York, 845 miles from Chiecago, and 2,750 miles
I from Liverpool. :

British troops were stationed at Montreal till 1870. The Barracks
were situated where the C. P. R. Dalhousie Station now stands.

I The Military cemetery and powder magazine and store-rooms Were
7 on St. Helen's Island.
i Montreal surrendered fo the British forces under Generals

Murray and Amherst on the 8th September, 1760, a year after the
capture of Quebec. Ii was taken by the Americans on the 12th of
November, 1775, and retaken by the Britigh on the 15th of June;
1776. The English-speaking portion of the population were so dis-
i gusted with the Rebellion Losges Bill passed by the Liberals in 1847,
i that, when the Governor-General, Lord Elgin, enfered the Parlia-
ment House (erected where the St Ann's Market now stands) on
the 25th of April to give his assent to the measure, they gatherad
together from all quarters of the city, and entering the Parliament
House they drove ont the members and set fire to the building.
That was the last Parliament held in Montreal.
The censusg figures were not published as we go to press, but it
I ' | is estimated that the population of the city and suburbs is at least
| 300,000.

The population of Montreal proper (Government ¢ensus of 159 L)
was 216,650, or 245971, including St. Henri, Ste, Cunegonde, Cote St
Antoine and Mile End, This is over 23 percent increase during the
last decade. Over one-half of the population are of French, one-
fifth of Irish, one-seventh of English and one-seventeenth of Scotell
origin (but the one-seventeenth of Scotch orvigin have-as large &
share in the enterprise and business of Montreal as any of the other
nationalities which form one-half, one-fi‘th, or one-geventh of the
population), and as to religion, abiout two-thirds are Roman Catho-
lics. The general good feeling existing between parties of different
shades of opinion renders Montreal less subject to party disturban-
ces than other cities of the same population. This rule, of course,
like cvery other rule, had oae or two exceptions ; but the following
fwo instances show that the above rule has been very well followed.
In the olden times, just after the Conquest, the Protestants used one

.,
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of the Roman Catholic churches after morning mass. For 20
years after 1766, the Church of England people oceupied the Church
of the Recollets every Sunday afternoon. The Presbyterians used
the same church before 1792, and when the congregation moved to
their first church in St Gabriel Street, they presented to the priests
of the Recollet Church a gift of candles for the high altar, and of
wine for the mass, as a token of good-will, and thanks for the
gratuitous use of the chureh,

The Bongecours Church was very nigh being swept away a few
vears ago to make room for a railway station, hut some Protestants,
actuated by a love of the picturesque, and out of regard for the
memory of the good Sister by whom it was founded, made such a
noise about it that the Bishop intevefered to prevent the sale.

Louis Joseph Papineau, who, with William Lyon Mackenzie, took
the lead in the troubles of 1837-38, had his headguarters in Montreal.

It may be as well to remark here that these two men, Mackenzie
and Papineau, did more for the cause of freedom than any other
two men that ever lived in Canada. Like many other good men
they were not sufficiently honored till they were gone. It is now
admitted by all parties that there was much room for reform in the
government of the day.

01 the 9th of June, 1853, Father Gavazzi, a celebrated lecturer,
formerly a famous Roman Catholic priest, lectured against the
Church of Rome in Zion Congregational Church (now Small’s Cloth-
ing Ilouse), and a viot ensued, in which about 40 persons were
either killed or wounded.

One of the most unfortunate events in the history of Montreal
sag the murder of Thomas Hackett, an Orangeman, on the 12th of
July, 1877, by a gang of Fenians, on Vieloria Sguare, near the
Queen’s monument. Several of the bullet shof marks iay vet be
seen in the stone wall at 15 Vietoria Square, opposite the Queen's
monument.

The second steamer built on the continent of America was bullt
at Montreal, by Mr. John Molson, and was called the ' Accommoda-
tion.” She made her first voyage in 36 hours between Montreal and
Quebee, on the 3rd and 4th November, 1809,

From 1685 to 1801 Montreal was surrounded by a wall, extending
along the site of Fortification Lane from Victoria Sguare to Dal-
housie Square, at the Canadian Pacific Railway Depot. From
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Vietoria Square the walls extended down to the river, about the
site of MecGill Street. The city then was of triangular shape, the
small angle pointing towards the east.

Montreal is less subject to epidemics than many other eities of
the same size, although the smallpox got hold of it in 1885, on
account of the vast majority of the TFrench-Canadians being preju-
diced against vaccination. The number of deaths was 3,164 ; of
these, 2,887 were French-Canadians, 181 other Catholics, and 96
Protestants.

The first steamer to cross the Atlantic. * The Royal William,"
had her engines built in Montreal by Mr. John Bennett, in 1831
The hull was built at Quebec by Mr. James Goudie. She made the
trip across the Atlantic in 1833. The “ Royal William,” was the
first war vessel propelled by steam. She was bought by the Spanish
Government and her name changed to ™ Isabella Secunda.”

NOTES RECEIVED FROM MR. LAMBE, OF THE INLAND
REVENUE.

Part of the old fortification wall may still be seen between Notre
Danie and St. James Street (232) near Dollard Lane.

There is an old gate in the cellar of Henderson's Fur Store, on
St. James Street, that led through the wall. The old town well was
on the site of Maisonneuve's Monument, Part of the old wall was
built of flat and part of round stones.

Old ruins of Baron de Longuenil’s house may still be seen on St.
Helen’s Island, at the back of the restaurvant.

Slavery was abolished in Canada in 1792, and the Jews were
emancipated in 1830,

CHRONOLOGY OF MONTREAL.

1535—O0ctober 2, Jacques Cartier visits Hochelaga (Montreal).

1811—Champlain visits the Island—76 years after Jacques Cartier

1#42—May 18, Montreal founded by Maisonneuve.

1641—March 3. the Battle of Champ de Mars (see Historical
Tablets No. 13, page 46.)

1685—The fortification wall was built around Montreal.

1700—Montreal surrenders to the British forces under Generals
Murray and Amherst,
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1765—There were only 136 Protestants in Montreal, and 500 in
Canada, (not including the army).

1775—May 1, a bust of George Iil, is found in Montreal, adorned
with beads and mitre and the words * Pope of Canada and Sot of
England.” A reward of 500 guineas was offered for the apprehen-
sion of the eulprit, but without avail,

1775—September 25, Ethan Allan and his fellow Yankee invaders
captured at Longue Point. .

1775—November 12, Montreal taken by the Americans.

1776—June 12, General Montgomery (U. 8.) invades Montreal.

1776—June 16, Arnold’s (U. 8.) army retreats from Montreal and
Montreal is again under the British flag.

17492—St. Gabriel Street Presbyterian Churech—the first Protestant
church in Montreal built.

1801—The old fortification walls were pulled down.

1600— August 17, foundation stone of Nelson’s Monument, Jacques
Cartier Square, laid.

1809—November 3, John Molson’s steamboat * Aceommodation
starts from Montreal for Quebec.

1817—Bank of Montreal, the first bank in Canada, opened.

1821—July 17, work commenced on the Lachine canal.

1522—NMontreal General Hospital finished.

1822—This year the population of Montreal was only 18,767,

1825—Lachine canal finished.

1826—MeGill College founded.

1820—Notre Dame Church onened.

1844—1Institut Canadien founded.

1847—Montreal Parliament Buildings burned by a Tory mob,

1847—6,000 immigrants (mostly Irish) die of ship fever.

1848—Jesuits' College opened.

1852—July 8. great fire in Montreal ; 11,000 houses burned.

1858—June 9, Gavazzi Riots.

1856—December 10, Christ Church Cathedral burned.

1861—First street railway in Montreal.

1568—The foundation of St. Peter's (St. James) Cathedral laid.

1875—S8eptember 2, Guibord Riots. R.C. mob prevent the burial
of Joseph Guibord, a French-Canadian R.C. and member of L’Insti-

tut Canadien, from being buried in his own lot in Cote des Neiges
cemetery.

-
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1875—November 16 : Following judgment of Privy Council,
Guibord is buried, being accompanied to the cemetery by a strong
military detachment, His grave is oae of the sights of the R.C.
cemetery. It is near the entrance, and is easily distingunished by
the large rock placed on top of it

1877—July 12, Murder of Hacket,

1879—July 81, Consolidated Bank fails,

1885—S8mallpox kills 3.164 people, mostly French-Canadians.

HOTELS.

The principal Hotels are :—Windsor Hotel, Dominion Sgnare ;
St, Lawrence Hall, St. James Street, near the Post-Office; Queen’s
Hotel; Balmoral Hotel; Albion Hotel; Savoy, on Victoria Street;
St. James Hotel, and Turkish Bath Hotel.

CHURCHES.

Afier the stranger has fixed on a hotel to stop in, the first point
of attraction in Montreal is the churches. Montreal is noted for
the number of churches it eontains, as well as for the number of its
charitable institutions. There are at present 87 churches in Mont-
real and suburbs, or one for every 2,800 people. Of these 20 are
Roman Catholic, 24 Presbyterian, 20 Episcopal, 1 Reformed Episco-
pal, 12 Methodist, 5 Congregational, 7 Baptist, 1 Swedenborgian or
New Jerusalem Chureh, 1 Unitarian, and 4 Jewish Synagogues, 1
German Lutheran, 1 Christian Scientist, 1 Advent Christian; 1
Catholic Apostolie. There are seven Protestant churches in which
the services are conducted in the French langnage.

Mark Twain remarked at the Windsor once that he never saw
so many churches within a stone’s throw of each other before.

St, Peter's Cathedral, properly speaking the Cathedral of St
James (he being its patron saint), now in course of construction on
Dominion Square, demands first attention. It is being built after
the model of St. Peter's at Rome, of which, generally speaking, it is
about half the dimensions, The foundation of it was laid in 1868.
The dimensions of St. Peter's at Rome are: length, 615 feet;
breadth, 286 feet; and height, 455 to the top of the dome.

The following are the dimensions of St. Peter's of Montreal,
copied from the figures on the plan of the cathedral, very kindly
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given to the compiler of this little book, by a gentleman in actual
charge of the econstruction. The exact height to the top of the
cross is 258 feet. that is, 240 feet to the top of the dome, and the
cross being 18 feet high, makes the entire height 258 feet. Tha
breadth of the cross is 12 feet. It weighs 1,500 1bs. The stone work
is 132 feet high. Above this is the dome, 108 feef of wood work,
with the eross 18 feet high, fixed on the top. The extreme length
of the huilding is 333 feet exterior and 295 feet inferior. The
greatest breadth is 222 feet exterior and 216 interior. The general
breadth is 150 feet, The general thickness of the wall is between
three and four feet. The foundation wall is eight feet thick and
eight feet deep below the surface. The circumference of the out-
side of the dome is 240 feet. The view of the city from the dome
excels by far every other view in the city.

The parish church of Notre Dame, erroneously called the French
Cathedral, stands upon Place d’Armes, Notre Dame Streef, (the
coldest spot in Montreal at all seasons of the year). Itis built after
the model of Notre Dame (Our Lady) in Paris. It holds 10,000
people comfortably, and when crowded, as it often is, it has been
known to hold 15,000 people. The length of the church is 255 feet,
and the breadth 134 feet. The two principal fowers are 227 feet
high. The Bourdon bell, the largest in America, weighs 24,780 1bs.,
and cost 325,000, It is 8 feet 7 inches in diameter, and 6 feet 9
inches high. Tt is 1 foot thick. Clappers weigh 860 1bs. Besides
this enormous bell there are 10 other bells, which, when rung on
great occasions, make very agreeable chimes, It is stated that the
entire church cost over 86,000,000, It is the largest ecelesiastical
edifice in America, except the Cathedral of Mexico. It has 19
double confession boxes, where 19 priests can hear 3§ confesgsions at
one time, It has two galleries, one above the other. The corner
stone was laid in 1824, and the first mass performed in 1829.

The Church of Notre Dame de Lourdes, built in 1874, for the
purpose of illustrating the doctrine of the Immaculate Conception, is
the most beautiful in the city, The adoration of the Virgin under
this name dates from the 11th February, 1858, when it is stated that
the Blessed Virgin appeared to a young Sheplierdess fourteen years
of age, named Bernadette Soubirous, at the Grotto of Massabielle, on
the banks of the river Gave, near the town of Lourdes (Loord), in
the diocese of Tarbes, in the upper Pyrenees, in the south-west of
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France, 530 miles from Paris, It is stated that the Blessed Virgin
appeared to this girl eighteen times, and told her that * she was the
Immaculate Conception,” and sent a message by her fo the clergy
to tell them to build a chapel for her on that rock. It isalso further
stated that she revealed a secret to her. which she told her not to
make known. It is also further stated that water, with healing
qualities, gushed out of the rock at that time, and continued to
flow ever since. In the basement of Notre Dame de Lourdes, at
Montreal, is a fac-simile of the Grotto at Lonrdes, which strangers
interested in such things should not fail to visit. TLourdes is noted
for its excellent chocolate, and is in the neighborhood of the best
mineral springs of the Pyrenees.—(Anna T. Sadliers, Wonders of
Lourdes.) N.B.—Is it the mineral qualities of the water or the
religicus nature of thie place that effects the cure?

The Church of Notre Dame de Bonsecours (Our Lady of Good
Help) is the oldest church in the city, being erected in 1771, There
is a grand statue of the Virgin erected on this church with an eleya-
tor to go up to it. [t was originally intended to erect this statue on
Mount Royal, but the citizens were not unanimous about the choice,
so it was decided to erect it where there would be no opposition,

Of the other Roman Catholic Churches the most interesting to
tourists and others are: the Jesuits' Church, on Bleury Street; St.
Patrick’'s Church, on St. Alexander Street; Notre Dame de Naza-
reth, and the Church of St. James.

PROTESTANT CHURCHES.

Christ Chureh Cathedral (Episcopal), on St. Catharine Street, is
said to be the finest specimen of gothic architecture in North
America. St. George’s Chureh, and the Church of St. James the
Apostle are the mext in importance of the Bpiscopal Churches in
point of architecture. St. George's (Low Church), has the largest
Protestant congregation in Montreal. The Methodists can now
boast of having one of the grandest churches in Montreal in St.
James Church, St. Catherine Street.

Of the Presbyterian churches, Crescent Street Church, St. Paul's
Church, and the American Presbyterian Church receive the most
attention for architecture. St. Gabriel Street Presbyterian Church
is the oldest existing Protestant church in Canada. If was erected
in 1792,
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THE CHURCH OF THE MESSIAH.

CHRISTIAN UNITARIAN,

This Church stands in part upon an interesting site. A tablet
upon its wall has the following inseription @ * Here stood Beaver

] Hall, built 1800, burned 1848 ; Mansion of

Joseph Frobisher, one of the founders of the
North-West Company, which made Montreal
for years the fur trading centre of America.”
The church was opened for worship in 1838.
It was much damaged by fire in 1869 and
then renewed. An earlier building on the
same sight was dedicated to Unitarian ser-
vices in 1845, Previously, the congregation,
which was organized in 1842, had worshipped
in the little building (vecently demolished)
which stood on the corner of Fortification
Lane and Vietoria (then Hay Market) Square.
Its first pastor was the late Rey. John Cord-
- ner, LL.D.. the Rey. I. F. Hayward and the
3 Rev. J. B. Green were each for a time associated with him. The
% present minister is the Rev. William S. Barnes.

i B,

The Young Men's Christian Association. the oldest institution of
the kind on the continent, on Dominion Square. Reading Room
and Library, open from 8§ a.m. to 10 p.m. Young men looking for
employment, whether resident in Montreal or not. would do well to
eall. Young nien’s prayer imeeting, Saturday, from 8 to 9 p.m.
Sunday services :—DMen's Bible Class, .30 to 10.30 am., 3 to 4 p.m.

The Sailors’ Institute, on Commissioners Street, is a kindred
I'g institution to the Y.M.C.A. There is also the Young Women's Chris-
] tian Association Rooms. A very useful institution,

RSEATHASONS

TAILORS
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VICTORIA BRIDGE.

Victoria Bridge. the longest bridge in the world at the time of
its erection, was considered the eighth wonder of the world. It is
one and seven-eighths miles long between stonework, and two miles
long including stone work approaches. It is made of twenty-five
tubes, supported by twenty-four piers, and two end butments, The
lower side of the centre tube is sixty feet above the summer level
of the River St. Lawrence. It was erected in 1859 by James Hodges,
from the designs of Robert Stephenson and Alexander M. Ross.

It was formally opened by the Prince of Wales in 1860, The
height from the bed of the river to the top of the centre tube is 103
feet. The greatest depth of water during the summer season is
about 22 feet, but in the spring the water sometimes rises over 20
feet above the summer level of the viver, In the spring of 1886 the
water rose 25 feet above the average summer level. The centre has
an elevation of about 20 feet above the ends. The current at the
bridge runs at the rate of seven miles an hour. The bridge cost
over $6,000,000. It belongs to the Grand Trunk Railway Company.
Trains generally take from four and a half to five minutes to eross
the bridge. It took five and one-half years to build it.

THE LACHINE CANAL is eight and a quarter miles long, and over-
comes g total rise of 456 feet. It has five locks, 270 teet long and 45
feet wide. Vessels drawing 12 feet of water can pass through it.
The width of the canal varies from 163 to 208 feet. The first ground
was broken at Lachine on the 17th of July, 1821.

WATER WORKS.—The water of the city is taken from the
River St. Lawrenece, about a mile above the Lachine Rapids, at a
point 37 feet above the summer leyel of the harbor of Montreal.
One branch of the aqueduct starts at that point, and another branch
starts from a peint a little over half a mile above. Both unite and
form a canal about five miles long, to the wheel house, at the west
end of the city, From the wheel house the water is pumped to the
large reservoir, on the side of the mountain, a distance of about
three miles. The large reservoir, dug out of the solid rock, is 200
feet above the level of the St. Lawrence. It is 810 feet long, by 377
feet wide, and 24 feet deep. It has a capacity of 36% millions of
gallons. From the large reservoir the water that supplies the ecity
above Sherbrooke Street is pumped to a smaller reseryvoir 70 yartfs
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further up, on the side of the mountain. The water works of the
city cost §6,000,000.

THE LACHINE RAPIDS are about seven miles above Montreal.
and about two miles helow the town of Lachine. The Rapids exten
about half a mile in length between Heron Island on the north and
Devil's Island on the south. During the summer season trains leave
Bonaventure Depot 7.55 a.m, and 5 p.m., to connect with the boats
shooting the Rapids in the morning and evening. The round trip
may be made in about two hours—return tickets 50c. Opposite
Lachine is the Indian village of Caughnawaga, where a remnant of
the Mohawk tribe of Irogquois are settled upon a reserve. These
Indians are famous for their gkill in boating, so that when the Brit-
ish Government, in 1884, sent a boat expedition up the cataracts of
the Nile, for the relief of Khartoum, a gang of fifty Caughnawagas
were sent to lead the expedition, and how satisfactorily they per-
formed their task is known to all who took an interest in the
history of these times.

PARKS AND SQUARES.

Mount Royal, so called by Jacques Cartier on his first visit o
Canada, 1535, in honor of the King of France, rises over 700 fest
above the level of the River St. Lawrence. The mountain peak
covers 430 acres of graund. A fine view of the city and surround-
ing country may be got from the summit. Looking southward
across the river, the first mountain to the left is Montaryille ; seven
pretty lakes are concealed in the recesses of the mountain. Next is
Beloeil mountain (or St. Hilaire), with the ruin of a chapel on the
summit, A depression in the midst of the mountain is occupied by
a lake of singular clearness and depth. Next is Rougemont. almost
concealing the Yamaska mountain behind it ; and to the right the
conical shape of Mount Johnson, or Monoir, sharply breaks above
the levei surface. In the far distance are to be seen the Green
Mountains of Vermont to the left, and the Adirondacks, in New
York to the right.

The cemeteries may bhe mentioned in connection with Mount
Royal Park, of which they now form a part, The first Catholic
cemetery was situated at Place d’Armes, and the Protestant ceme-
tery was located where St. James and St. Peter Streets meet, As
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the city extended the Roman Catholic cemetery was removed to
Dominion Square, and the Protestant cemetery to Dufferin Square,
on Dorchester Street east, There was also a civil and military
cemetery on Papineau road and on St. Helen's Island; and, finally,
they were all removed to their present location. In the Roman
Catholie cemetery the ascent to Mount Calvary, by the 14 stations
of the cross, appeals to the devotion of Roman Catholies, and inter-
ests Protestants, as being a feature not met with in the cemeteries
usually visited.

87, HELEN'S IspAxD, now used as a public park, is the most
popular place for picnics in the city. The island is named after
Héléne Boullé, Champlain’s wife, the first European lady that came
to Canada. It was used for many years by the British Government
as a depot for military stores and a station for troops. The fort
and barracks still remain.

Viger Square, or as it is popularly called, Viger Garden, on St
Denis Street,

Tur Cnasme-pE-Mans, upon Craig Street, is a fine exercise
ground for troops.

Jacques Canrien Squane, near the City Hall and Court House,
has a fine outlook upon the river, A column, surmounted by a
statue of Lord Nelson, is placed at the head of the square. It was
erected in 1808, by the merchants of Montreal, shortly after the
death of the Admiral at Trafalgar.

VicToRa SQUARE, at the junction of St. James and MeGill
Streets, is on the site of the old hay market. The name was chang-
ed in 1860, in honor of the Queen, on the occasion of the visit of the
Prince of Wales to Canada. Upon it is a colossal statue of the
Queen, in bronze, by Marshall Wooil, an English artist.

DoaixioN SpwaAne is the finest square in the city as to site. Till
late yvears it was known as the Catholic Cemetery. The Windsor
Hotel, St. Peter's Cathedral, and several other churches, give it
importance architeeturally. (See list of streets, ete.)

Prace D'AruEs (so called on acecount of the battle that was once
fought here with the Indians), the site of the first Roman Catholic
cemetery in Montreal, is opposite Notre Dame Church; it is sur-
rounded on all sides by important buildings. This is said to be the
coolest spot in Montreal at all seasons of the year.
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THE ST. LAWRENCE.

Tie River Srt. LawrescE is 2,200 miles long. Its remotest
source is the St. Louis. a small stream falling into the upper end
of Lake Superior, It is the fourteenth longest river in the world,
and the fifth longest river in America. From Quebec to Montreal
a short distance below Quebee to the Gulf of St. Lawrence, it varies
from 10 to 35 miles in width. Half-way between Montreal and
Quebec it widens out into Lake St. Peter, which is 20 miles long and
9 wide, Jacques Cartier sailed for the first time on the Gulf of St.
Lawrence on the 10th of August, 1535, and that being St. Lawrence
Day. he named that body eof water in honor of the saint, and the
Gulf and River St. Lawrence have Dheen known by that name ever
sinee,

At Quebec the river rises 15 feet, but it ceases to be observed at
the lower end of Lake St. Peter, The depth of the river is so great
that Quebec was one of the few ports in Ameriea which the “Great
Easiern” was able to visit.

PUBLIC BUILDINGS.

The principal public buildings are :—The Court House, Bonse-
cours Market (should be wvisited on Tuesday or Friday), the Custom
House, the Examining Warehouse, the new City Hall, the Harbor
Commissioners’ Building, Inland Revenue Office, the office of the
Board of Arts and Agriculture, and the Exhibition Buildings and
Grounds. Mile End.

RAILWAY STATIONS.

Montreal has three of the best railway stations on the continent,
all new., The Grand Trunk and Canadian Pacific Railways have
Bonaventure and Windsor Stations in the West end of the city, and
the Canadian Pacific Railway has also Dalhousie Station in the east
end for the Quebec line, The Grand Trunk Railway depot at
Bonaventure, or St. James Street, and the Canadian Pacific Railway
Station, on Windsor Street, should be visited by any one who has
time.

NEW YORK LIFE BUILDING.

One of the most substantial and valuable buildings in the whole
Dominion is the chief office of the New York Life Insurance
Company, which was erected some few years since at the corner of
Place d’Armes and St. James Street, to be the home of their Cana-
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dian business. After providing for the requirements of the
Company, there is a large portion of the Building which is sub-let
to tenants. It is a hive of industry during the busy business hours,
and its three elevators are kept constantly at work, and an average
of 12,000 or 12,000 persons per week malke use of them.

The Company commenced business as far back as 1841, and
entered Canada in 1883, While their Building is an ornament,
they would probably consider that their enterprise has been repaid,
because last year they paid for over five and a quarter millions of
new business in the Dominion of Canada, which is a larger amount
than has ever been done by any other company, Canadian, British
or foreign.

It is not unusual for visitors to Montreal to go up the tower of
this building, from which they can get an excellent view of the
whole city, the attendants arve courteous, and there is no charge.

Tne building is eight stories above the ground, but in addition
there are two stories below the pavement, one rented for offices, and
the lower one used for the machinery and electric plant which
works the electric light and the elevators.

Among other important offices in the Building there are those
occupied by the Quebec Bank, as well as the Office of the Montreal
Gas Company. A great many of the tenants belong to the legal
profession, there being a law library in the Building provided by
the Company for the use of tenants, which is one of the most valu-
able in Canada.

A USEFUL LIFE,

There is no more useful calling in our day and generation than that
of the druggist and chemist. The successful druggist requires a high
order of intelligence and a close atiention to business. He is at
his post early and late, and he gets few holidays. Of all the many
druggists in Montreal no one has had a more honored career than
Mr. Henry R. Gray, 122 8t. Lawrence Street, He i a native of
Lincolnshire, England, and came to Canada in 1858, after having
served his apprenticeship and otherwise qualifying himself for his
profession in the world's metropolis (London). With one exeep-
tion, he has been engaged in the sale of drugs and medieines longer
than any other pharmacist in Montreal. It is a chronic complaint with

MONTREAL AND VICINITY. 29

the Montreal public that the best men have a reluctance to enter pub-
lie life. 1In this respect, like many others, Mr. Gray has shown a
good example. His efforts for the improvement of the sanitary
arrangements of this city and province are well known. He is now
a member of the Provineial Board of Health, and also & member of
the Counecil of Public Instruction. He was alderman and chairman
of the local Board of Health during the fearful smallpox epidemic
of 1885-6. He has made several useful discoveries in medicine.
Besides those that he sold to some of the large wholesale establish-
ments (which I am not going to advertise gratis) he has several
specialties of which he has reserved the right, such as * Sapon-
aceous Dentifrice,” for the teeth, which sells for 25¢ a bottle,
“Dental Pearline,” and ‘‘Castor Fluid.” Mr. Gray saves the
people of his distriet a good deal in doctor's fees, as he often gives
advice gratis which would cost his customers many dollars. One
instance which eame under my own observation will be sufficient
without enlarging on the subject, and as he will not see this till it
is printed and cannot recall it unless he buys this edition of 2,000
copies, I will relate it. A certain party (never mind who it was)
asked for something. *¥es, he had it, but it cost 50c¢ and he
had something for 25¢ just as good.”

BENEVOLENT INSTITUTIONS,

Montreal is as remarkable for the number and variety of its
philanthropie institutions as it is for the number of its churches.
Every national society has its * home " for those of its own nation-
ality. The St. George's Society for English, St. Andrew's for Scoteh,
St. Patriek’s for the Catholic Irish, and the Irish Benevolent Society
for Protestant Ivish, the German Society for Germans, and St. John
the Baptist's for French-Canadians. The social organization of
Montreal is so composite, that in order to work well many institu-
tions require to be triplicate at best. Race and language divide the
French from the English and Irish, and religion divides the Eng-
lish from the French and Irish; and the Irish are sub-divided by
religion, 8o that they require two separate national benevolent
societies,

The following are the principal institutions :—
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BOYS' HOME.

The Boys Home was first started in Barre Street. The first
building on the present site at 117 Mountain Street was built in
1871. Mr. Charles Alexander paying for building it, the lot having
been bought by some other philanthropic gentleman. The first
building has been econsiderably enlarged since. Mr. Alexander has
been president for over thirty years. Mr. J. R. Dick has been
superintendent for about twenty years. Of late years he has been
assisted by Mr. Gawne, In one of his annual reports the Superin-
tendent says, “ What would we ever do without Mr. Gawne?"

Royal Victoria Hospital—This noble institution was founded in
1887 by two noble Caledonians, Lord Strathcona and Mount Royal
(then Sir Donald A. Smith), and Lord Mount Stephen. It was
opered in 1894, [t has 215 beds with a daily average of 187
patients. Two thousand six hundred and nineteen patients were
admitted during last year. The most radieal reformer cannot
objeet to such use of wealth.

Protestant Insane Asylum, Verdun.

The Montreal General Hospital, corner Dorchester and St. Domi-
nique, founded in 1822,

Protestant House of Industry and Refuge, 680 Dorchester Street.

The Mackay Institute, for Protestant Deaf Mutes, Cote Sf. Lue
Road.

The Montreal Dispensary, 145 St. Antoine Street.

The Ladies' Benevolent Institition, 31 Berthelet Street.

The Andrew's Home, in connection with the Episcopal churches,
in Palace Street.

Protestant Infants' Home, 508 Guy Street.

St Margaret's Nursery for Foundlings and House of Mercy for
Fallen Women (Episcopalian), 12 Kensington Ave., Cote St. Antoine.

St, Margaret’s Home, Church of England, 660 Sherbrooke Street.

Home for Friendless Women, 418 St. Antoine Street.

Protestant Orphan Asylum, 2409 St. Catharine Street.

St. Andrews Home, 403 Agueduct Street.

St. George's Home, 139 St. Antoine Street.

The Hervey Institute, Mountain Street, near Dorchester.

The Montreal Maternity, 93 St. Urbain St.

The Western Hospital, 1251 Dorchester Street.
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The Women's Protective Immigration Soeiety, 141 Mansfield
Street,

Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Animals, 189 St. James
Street.

Grey Nunnery, corner of Guy and Dorchester Streets. At one
time this institution served as a hospital. It is now more of a
foundling institution and boarding-house for old men and old wo-
men. The name * Grey Nuns ™ was first given them in derision.
(See Appleton's Canadian Guide Book). The peculiar dress worn
by the sisterhood of that order was adopted by them for the first
time in August, 1775; seventeen years after the foundation of the
order. The order was founded in 1738, the first list of members
being Mme. d'Youville, with three pious companions and four or
five infirm poor. In the year 1747, the management of the General
Hospital of Ville-Marie, founded in 1694, was given to the sisters of
this order. During the year of the ship fever in 1847-8, these sisters
took a leading part in their attendance on suffering humanity at
that time. This institution has about 800 inmates, between nuns
and patients. Although visitors are always welcome, twelve o'clock
noon is the time that is best for visitors to call, as special prepara-
tions for the reception of visitors are made then. :

On a little spot of ground (neatly fenced in) at Point St. Charles,
near the end of Vietoria Bridge, is an enormous stone, called the
Immigrants’ Memorial Stone, taken from the bed of the River St.
Lawrence, and erected on a column of stone work by the working-
men employed in the construction of the Victoria Bridge. bearing
the following inscription : — * To preserve from desecration the
remains of 6,000 immigrants, who died of ship fever, A.D. 1847-2.
this stone is erected by the workingmen of Messrs. Peto, Brasseys
and Betts, employed in the construection of the Victoria Bridge, A.D.
1859." (This stone has been removed.)

The Hotel Dien Hospital is the oldest institution of the kind in
Montreal, being founded in 1644, two years affer the foundation of
the city. It is under the management of the Black Nuns. It
contains a hospital, a convent, and a chirch. Eighty of the Sisters
are cloistered; and do not go outside of the building and grounds.

I the Notre Dame Hospital the management is decidedly Roman
Catholie, but it is open for the relief of the sick and suffering of all
creeds; and the patients have the privilege of sending for a clergy-
man of the denomination they belong to.
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The Sisters of the order of Asile de la Providence have eight mstl;
tutions under their charge at Montreal, They have also charge O
{he Insane Asylum at Longue Pointe.

EDUCATIONAL INSTITUTIONS.

The school laws in Montreal are, in some respects, peculiar. Alnl.
assessment of one-fifth of one percent is lev‘ierl annually ul?o;: .talg,l :
the real estate in the ecity, collected by the City Treasurer TV].t[ ; t
other taxes. and handed over to the two city boards of Ii'wte: -anf
and Catholic School Commissioners. The tax on the plOpP:'I ¥ :V
Protestants goes to the Protestant Board, a‘n‘cl that on the property
of Catholics to the Catholic Board. One-third of the ta.ux ?n cor;-
panies. etc., goes to the Protestant Sehools, and two-thirds to the

i hools. )
SRt i McGILL UNIVERSITY.

The Honorable James MeGill was born in Glasgow, Qcto.ber fi{
1744, and died at Montreal, December 19, 1183. By his last will amf
test#ment, dated January 8. 1811, he devised that tract z:tnfi par;fi 5}
land commonly called Burnside, situated “near the City of_ ho:;,—
real”” and containing about forty-seven acres of land, wit 1 e
Manor House and other buildings thereon erected, anrd fa. :o
begueathed * the sum of ten thounsand pounds current mon?} 0 ; ie
Provinee of Lower Canada,” to the ™ Royal Inst}tutlon f[-)l the t-.
vancement of Learning” fo erect and establish a umverslti 01['
college ** for the purposes of edncation, and the advancement o
learning in the Province, with a competent number of .pt;:ﬁes;ls%i
and teachers to render the establishment effectual and bene Cu;gges
the purposes intended ; upon condition also, that one of thée o) o
to be comprised in the said University shall be name.d an [De:;i o
ally be known and distingnished by the appellation of MeG
001}55 ?:iae date of the bequest the value of the ahove-rr}enu?ned W&:.S
estimated at $120,000. Though the charter of McGﬂl‘Lni\'ers:.y
dates from the year 1821, so that it is nominally over eighty f'etmrs
old, its actual history as a teaching institution began somewhat la e“;
Owing to protracted litigation, the property betmeat.hed Sid n_o(; co:h(;
into the possession of the Board of Governors until 18.,?. nl : 3
94th of June in that year, the University. was formally opened 1n
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Burnside House, the old residence of the founder. The Montreal
Medical Institute, which had been in existence for some years, was
incorporated with it as the Faculty of Medicine, and shorfly after-
wards the Faeulty of Arts was established with a Prineipal and
three Professors. The infant institution met with several checks to
its growth, and it was not until its charter was amended in 1852,
that it began a career of rapid progress. Happily for the Univer-
sity. Sir James William Dawson, a distinguished geologist and
naturalist, (born at Pictou, Nova Scotia, in October, 1820) became
its Prinecipal in 1855, and to his unwearied efforts in its behalf in
all its different departments it mainly owes its remarkable siuccess.
Within the last few years its revenues have increased wonderfully—
its staff of teachers is very efficient—and the number of students
prove the value of the varied instruction imparted. To the facul-
ties of Aris and Medicine those of Law and Applied Science have
been added, and all these are in a most thriving condition, The
Donalda special course in Arts provides for the edueation of women
with studies, exemptions, and honors similar to those for men.

The Governors, Principal and Fellows of McGill College consti-
tute the Corporation of the University, and have the power of grant-
ing degrees in all the Arts and Faculties in MeGill College, and the
affiliated Colleges of Morrin, Quebeec, St. Franecis, Richmond, and
Stanstead, P.Q. There are four affiliated Theological Colleges, viz.,
the Congregational, the Presbyterian, the Diocesan, and the Wesley-
an, all in Montreal. The McGill Normal School provides the train-
ing requisite for teachers of elementary and model schools and
academies. The affiliated schools in addition are the Boys'
High School, and the Girls’ High School, Montreal, Trafalgar Insti-
tute, for the education of women, ete., ete.

Of the numerous noble endowments and benefactions contributed
to the University by the millionaires and other rich men of the city,
it would occupy many pages to give even a brief account. We need
only mention the William Molson Hall, the Peter Redpath Museunt,
the William C. MeDonald Physics Building, the Thomas Workman
Department of Mechanical Engineering, the William C. MeDonald
Engineering Building, the Library, ete., to show how generously
large sums of money have been presented for University buildings;
and we find that the same liberality has been displayed, especially
of late years, in the endowment of Chairs, Exhibitions and Scholar-
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as alsp in subscriptions to the general
eurrent expenses, for the Library,
Museum, and apparatus, and, in fact, for almost everything needo:d
from tiﬁle to time in all the faculties. Ladies ‘and gentlemen vie
with one another in assisting the University thh‘ money for any
and every purpose that may he suggested by the universally 1'espeef-
ed Principal. No man in the world has ever labored more
constantly and disinterestedly than he for the permanen‘t benefit of
an edueational institution. He has sacrificed not only income, but
what is more important to him, mueh time in ’che.drudgerff of“thc':
mere routine business of the College, As he ha?. hlm.self Sﬁ.lﬂ:. My
connection with this University for the past thirty-eight yeals.. has
been fraught with that happiness which results fl'r.)ml the c?nscwuslz
ness of effort in a werthy cause, and from assocu}t}on with suec
noble and self-sacrificing men as have built up MeGill Col.lege. But
it has been filled with anxieties and cares, and with continuous an(l.
almost unremitting labor. 1 haye been obliged to leave u-ndc'm.e, 01I
imperfectly accomplished, many cherished .schemes by x\-hlehh
hoped to benefit humanity, and leave tootprints for gonid on ft. (‘:
sands of time.” These pathetic words must conclude .our.‘ imper eci
sketeh of MeGill University and its benefactors. Principal PeEm-
son succeeded Sir Wm. Dawson in 1896. He has filled the office with
: gelf and his native country.
(m‘;‘i}lmu;’?;::)yterian College of Montreal is entirely devoted to tljl::
training of Missionaries and ministers speaking Englis.h. Frenc
and Gaelie, in connection with the Presbyterian Chm-chv in Canada.
I\Inntreeﬂ Wesleyan Theological College was founded in 1872, anc‘{
is affiliated to MecGill University. In 1887 it was granted a chavter
_ to confer degrees in Divinity. The first Principal was the Rev. (r}eo.
Douglas, LL.D. (1873-1894) who was succeeded }1}’ .the Rev. W. I
Shaw, D.D., LL.D. (1895-1900). The present Prineipal is the ‘Re\-.
T, . L. Maggs, B.A., D.D., Professor of O. T. Lit. The ot}rler 1'e5fdent
professors ave: The Rev. W. I. Shaw, D:D., Prof. of N. T. L,zt., the
Rev, W. Harris, M.A., B.D,, Prof. of Church Hist.; the Rev. W. Jaclk-
son, D.D.. Prof. of Syst. Theo., Apologetics, ete. There are also
instructors in French, Elocution, etc. The number o.t regist_m'ed
students for 1900-1901, resident and non-resident, was thirty-nine.
T CONGREGATIONAL COLLEGE of Canat_ia was founded in 1839.
In 1864 it became affiliated with MeGill University, being the first of

ships, medals and prizes,
endowment, subseriptions for
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the group of Theologieal Colleges enjoying this privilege. The
officers of instruction are as follows: Rev, J. Henry George, D.D.,
Ph.D., Principal and Professor of Systematic Theology, Apologetics
and Practical Theology. Rev. W. Henry Warriner, M.A. D.D.,
Registrar and Professor of New Testament Literature, Exegesis
and Ecclesiastical Theology. Rey. Harlan Creelman, B.D., Ph.D.,
Professor of Hebrew, Cognate Languages and Biblical Literature
(Miner Foundation.) Lecturers: —Rev. Douglas Mackenzie, D.D.,
of Chieago Theo. Sem., Philosophy of Religion (McKechnie Lecture-
ship). Rev. Graham Taylor, D.D., of Chicago Theo. Sem., Chris-
tian Sociology. Honorable R. 8. Weir, D.C.L., Recorder of Mont-
real, Liturgies and Church Law. Rev. E. M. Hill, M.A,, D.D.,
Pastoral Theology. Mr. John P. Stephen, Imstructor in Elocution.
Number of Students in Theology, 14; in Preparatory School, 7.

THE SEMINARY OF ST. SULPICE.

On Sherbrooke Street West, commonly called the Montreal
College, consists of three departments, the classical, the scientific
and the theological. They are commonly designated respectively
the Montreal College, Seminary of Philosophy and the Grand Semi-
nary. The Seminary of Philosophy is a magnificent new structure,
overlpoking Sherbrooke Street, and having its entrance from Cote des
Neiges road. In these three courses there are over six hundred and
fifty students from all parts of North America, and the Grand
Seminary supplies annually more than fifty missionaries for the
whole continent. In front of the Grand Seminary are two old
towers, or bastions, being all that remains of the ancient “Fort de
la Montagne.,” This mountain fort was in reality a fortified Indian
Mission, built in 1694, for the protection of the neophytes against
the inenrsions of their barbarous enemies. The towers, which may
be seen from Sherbrooke Street, are thus more than two centuries
in existence. They formed the angular bastions of the fort built
for the Missionaries, which was a distinet construetion from that
oceupied by the Indians. In one of these towers the Sisters of the
Congregation dwelf, and they kept their Indian school in the other.

Laval University,—What the McGill University is to the English
and Protestants of the Province, fhe University of Laval is to the
French Catholics. The chief seat of this institution is at Quebeec.

The establishment of Laval University at Montreal profoundly
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agitated the French community, and the matter does not seem to
have been finally settled as yet.

St. Mary’s College, otherwise wecalled the Jesuits' College, on
Bleury Street, is under the management of the Jesuit Fathers,

Ville Marie Convent is the mother house of the order of Sisters of the
Congregation. It has accommodation for 1,000 nuns. The nuns of this
order make an annual retreat here from all parts of the country.
The building is better known to some under the name of Monklands.
It was at one time the residence of the Governor-General of Canada.
A fine view of the building is got sailing down the river on a clear
day, The building was partially destroyed by fire in 1893,

The Sisters of this order at present number about 800 professed
Sisters, 90 novices, 50 postulants, and about 20,000 pupils. .

The nuns of the order of the Sacred Heart have three establish-
ments in Montreal. The home of the order is at Amiens, France,

The Hochelaga Convent is the mother house of the Sisters of the
order of the Holy Names of Jesus and Mary.

The Veterinary College.—Montreal possesses a very important
School of Veterinary Science, under the care of Principal McEach-
ran. Students from a great distance come to attend this college.
It has six professors besides the prineipal.

Board of Art Schools.—These are free evening classes for draw-
ing. The Montreal School has 300 pupils.

SCIENCE, LITERATURE AND ARTS.

Libraries.—The principal libraries in Montreal are: the MeGill
College Library of 25,000 volumes. The Advocates' Library in the
Court House, 15,000 vols. Presbyterian College Library, 10,000 vols.

The Mechanics' Institute has a very large library. There is a
free publiec library in the Fraser Institute, Dorchester Street. The
Y.M.C.A. has a very good library, and a well supplied free reading
room.

The library of the Seminary of St. Sulpice is very large, contain-
ing over 30,000 volumes. ]

THE FINE ARTS.

Music,—There are several musical societies in the eity, but only
two, the Mendelssohn Choir and Philharmonic Society, are regularly
organized. :
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The Art Association—This institution owes its existence to the
late Bishop Fulford and the late Benaiah Gibb., There is a perma-
nent collection, which is gradually being added to and improved.
All art exhibitions of any importance in Montreal take place here.
The galleries are open from mnine to dusk, and are situated at the
corner of St. Catherine Street and Phillips Square. Saturday, except
when special exhibitions are in progress, is free,

The Natural History Society.—The Museum of this Society is on
University Street, near the BEnglish Cathedral. Tt is well worth a
vigit, Among the interesting articles to be seen there is the first
breech-loading gun ever invented. It was sent to this country by
the French Government. It was used by the French in one of their
expeditions against the Indians of Lake Oka. The Indians attack-
ed the canoe in which the cannon was placed and upset it. The
cannon lay for a while in the bottom of the lake and one part of it
was lost there and never found. The finest specimens of mummies
to be seen in any musenm may be seen there, some of them 3,500
years old, without a hair of the head removed., It contains several
valuable relics relating to Canadian history, and several articles of
general interest too numerous to be mentioned, such as the searf of
Mary Queen of Scots ; HEgyptian sun-dried briek, manufactured, it is
supposed, at the time the children of Israel were in hondage there.
The best collection extant of Canadian birds is to be seen there.

THE CHATEAU DE RAMEZAY.

This, one of the oldest and most historie buildings in Montreal,
is a one-story building, built after the manner of the old Cana-
dian manor houses of unhewn stone and boulders, with pitehed roof
and vaulted basement.

It is now occupied by the Numismatic and Antiguarian Society
as an antiguarian Museum and National portrait gallery.

Claude de Ramezay, who was appointed governor of Montreal in
1703, finding no suitable residence in the then town of fifteen
hundred inhabitants., had to build a chateau for himself. and for
nearly twenty years occupied this chateau, which took the name of
de Ramezay after its owner, as his official residence as commandant
of the troops. Here, in the Council Chamber, he made plans for the
defense of the Colony from the raids of the Indians from the West
and the ** Bostonnais” to the south.
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In 1745 the property passed into the hands of ** La Compagnie
des Indes,” (The India Company), and under its ownership was for
twenty-five years the chief lieu of the Canadian fur trade. From
this occupation it was long known as the * India House.”

As the Conquest had dissolved the company as far as Canadian
business was concerned, the building was sold in 1764 to William
Grant, who leased it in 1774 to the Goyernment, to be again the
official residence of the Governor of Montreal. So, in 1775, when
the Continental army captured Montreal, they took up their head-
quarters here and Generals DMontgomery, Wooster and Benedict
Arnold, successively held councils in the old Counecil Chamber, and
in the same chamber the Commissioners, Franklin, Chase and
Carrollton, appointed by Congress, held council as to the hest means
of gaining possession of Canada.

When the Government purchased the house in 1778, its designa-
tion was changed to “ The Government House,” which title it bore
as long as it was the residence of the governors. The Bpecial
Counecil appointed in 1838 to legislate for the Province of Lower
Canada, sat here, until superseded by the Parliament of the
Dominion of Canada. elected in 1840, In 1845, when the seat of
government was removed to Montreal, it became the departmental
office, and it was here, in 1848, that Lord Elgin was mobbed after
having given assent to the Rebellion Loss Bill.

After the removal of the seat of government from Montreal in
1850. it was successively occupied as a court house, a normal school,
a college and again as a court house,

SPORTS.

In Canada fondness for outdoor sports has been a characteristic
of the people, and in no town or city has it shown more vitality
than in the City of the * Royal Mount,” the commercial metropolis
of the Dominion. Canadians have inherited the three fascinating
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CURLING,
The Montreal Curling Club, founded in 1807, is the oldest club of
organized out-door sport on the continent.
The other clubs are the ** Thistle,” organized in 1843, the Cale-
donia, organized in 1850, the Heather, organized in 1887, and the St.
Lawrence, organized in 1891,

CRICKET.

The early records of cricket in Montreal have yet to be traced.
The first international mateh with the United States was played in
Montreal in 1845.

Toronto Cricket Clubs in 1846 and 1849,

SNOWSHOBING.

The Montreal Snowshoe Club, or the *0ld Tuque Bleu” dates
back to 1840. In 1862 the members assisted to form the Victoria
Rifles. In 1869 H. R. H. Prince Arthur, now Duke of Connaught,
then serving as a lieutenant in the Prince Consort Rifle Brigade,
attended the club race meeting and honored the club by allowing
his name to be placed upon the roll as an -Honorary Life Member,

In 1874 the ** Emerald," and shortly afterwards the * St. George™
Snowshoe Clubs were formed, and the ' Le Canadien,” in 1878, and
the “Argyle,’ in 1880,

To the “0ld Tuque Bleu belongs the lion's share of the organ-
1zation and suecess of each successive winter earnival.

LACROSSE.

The early records of the “National Game” in Montreal are some-
what obscure. As far as can be ascertained at present, the first
recorded match was played between teams of Iroguois and Algon-
quin Indians in September, 1834, at the St. Pierre Race Course.

The first annual meeting of the pioneer elub of lacrosse, and the
“Alma Mater” of the National Game, was held in September, 1857,
and the next club of white players to organize was the “Hochelaga,”
in 1858, which eventually amalgamated with the Montreal, in Mareh,
1860, under the name of “The Lacrosse Club of Montreal,” which was

out-door pastimes of Lacrosse, Snowshoeing, and Tobogganing from

the Indians, % 1 changed to the “Montreal Lacrosse Club,” in March, 1861. The first
The M.AAA, (Montreal Amateur Athletic Association) is the :3'7. rules and laws of the game were compiled and published by Dr. Geo.
centre of all sorts of sport in Montreal. Their building and gym- % W. Beers. (the now Hon, President of the Montreal Club) in 1860,

nasium is at 149-153 Mansfield Street, and grounds at Westmount, The Shamrock Lacrosse Club was formed in 1867.
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SKATING.

The ** Montreal Skating Club »” was formed in 1859, and erected
a skating rink en St. Urbain Street. The club has now a large
skating rink on Drummond Street.

FOOTBALL.

The “Montreal Foothall Club,” which has the honor of being the
pioneer club of Canada. was founded in 1868. It is affiliated with
the M.A.AA. since 1885,

TOBOGGANING.

Ag an organized sport Tobogganing is one of recent date and is
already fast on the ineline and decline, The first Montreal club was
established in 1881. During the Winter Carnivals of 1883, "84 and

‘85 this sport was very popular, and a number of artificial slides

were erected in different parts of the city. The only slide now
standing is that on the Mountain Park. This ridiculous and danger-
ous amusement is now chiefly practiced by the small children, who
take possession without permission of most of the streets suitable
to thelr amusement, much to the annoyance and danger of the
pedestrians.

Hockey on ice is a game which the youth of Canada has develop-
ed for himself. In Scotland or Ireland ** hockey" or “shinty,” is a
field game, but in Canada it has developed into one of the most
fascinating of winter sports, rivalling lacrosse in the intensity of
interest. The first recorded match was played in the Victoria Rink
on March 3rd, 1875. In 1877 appears the first mention of rules of
the game.

BICYCLING.

Bieyeling may be said to date its birth from 1865, when Pierre
Lallement, a French mechanic, invented a two-wheel cycle with a
foot crank, at Ansonia, Connecticut, and rode from that town to
New Haven. The first complete bievele introduced on this conti-
nent was brought aeross the Atlantic in June, 1874, by Mr. A. T,
Lane, ex-president of the Canadian Wheelman's Association, and on
Dominion Day of the same year Mr, Lane rode through the streets
of Monftreal, the first bicycle seen running on the streets on this
continent., Bieyeling is now such that many sincerely wish that as
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an amusement it may be as short lived as tobogganing, or that its
devoteses may take the notion to exchange the crowded streets and
squares of the eity for the long country roads.

Theatres—The Academy, on Victoria Street. The Queen's,
corner of Victoria and St. Catherine Streets, The Royal, on Coté
Street.

Hunting.—Montreal can boast of the best conducted hunting
establishment on this continent; Kennels, on Papineau Road.

Gymnasium.—The Gymnasium of the Montreal Amateur Athletic
Association (M.ALA.A.), 114 Mansfield Street, is a very good and
useful institution.

The following kinds of amusements are also well represented at
Montreal: —Baseball, Chess, Boating, Golf, Racket, Lawn Tennis.
(Racing—Blue Bonnets, about five miles west of Montreal, and
Lepine Park, about 3 miles east of Montreal, are the principal places
for this amusement, where vast crowds of people gather on a racing
day.)

Militia.—Volunteering is a favorite oceupation of the young men
of the c¢ity. There are six regiments of infantry, one troop of
Cavalry, one company of Engineers, one battery of Horse Artillery,
and six batteries of Garrison Artillery.

MONTREAL AMATEUR ATHLETIC ASSOCIATION.
INCORPORATED 1881,

Past Presidents:—A.W. Stevenson, Wm. L. Maltby, Angus Grant,
F. C, A. McIndoe, Jas. A. Taylor, Thos. I.. Paton, Major Freeman.

The Association is composed of the following Clubs :(—

Montreal Lacrosse Club, organized 1856,

Montreal Snowshoe Club, organized 184(.

Montreal Bieyele Club, organized 1878,

Montreal Toboggan Club, organized 1883,

Montreal Football Club, organized 1868.

The Gymnasium, Club Rooms and office are owned by the Associa-
tion. and are situated at 149 Mansfield Street, central to bofh the
business and residential portions of the city. The Association also
is in possession of one of the finest athletic grounds on the
continent, containing over ten acres of ground, and beautifully situ-
ated on St. Catherine Street West, in the wealthy residential suburb
of Westmount.

Archives de la Ville de Montréal
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NEWSPAPERS AND PERIODICALS.

The first newspaper published in Canada was the Halifax
Gifazelfe, published by John Bushnell, 23rd March, 1752. There ara
now about fifty newspapers and periodicals in English and French.
There are three French and four English daily newspapers and ten
French and eight English weekly newspapers, eight French and
eleven English monthlies and two English guarterlies.

The Giazetle (Conseryative) is the only English morning paper in
Montreal, and claims unbroken connection with the first newspaper
published in the old Chateau de Ramesay under the direction of the
famous Benjamin Franklin, in 1778. It was originally written in
French, with the object of persuading the French-Canadians to
form Lower Canada into a State of the Union, It was next written
half in French and half in English, but, after a short experiment, it
was finally printed all in English. From a layman's point of view
the ffazelfe is the best all-round paper in Montreal,

The Star is first and foremost a newspaper. It is safe fo say
that no other newspaper in Canada can compete with it in the
matter of getting most news in least time. It has the largest circu-
lation of any English newspaper in Canada. Tt was established in
1869, Its weekly edition has a circulation of nearly a quarter of
a million.

The Herald is the local English Liberal organ. It had the
misfortune to be three times burned out. It is now very ably
managed, and is holding its own end up well. It is a lively, inter-
esting newspaper, very suitable for the seaside,

The Montreal Witness was founded in 1845. It has grown from
a very small weekly to a great modern daily, and that without
sacrificing any of the principles of Christian righteousness with
which it was started by the late Mr. John Dougall. The Witness
aims o print all the news that is fif to print, and comments on the
same in honest, intelligent and vigorous editorials. It is entirely
free from partisan and financial influence, and perhaps no other
publication holds so high a place in the esteem and regard of the
Canadian people. It guards its advertising columns with the same
zealous care as its news ; and advertisements of a doubtful or hurt-
tul nature are strictly excluded, The position occupied by the
‘Witness' in Canadian journalism for the past half century has

A
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indeed been an honored one, and it is little wonder then that it has
s0 many warm friends. The paper is now conducted by Mr. John
Redpath Dougall, a son of the founder, and by Mr. Frederick E.
Dougall, a grandson of the founder.

La Presse, founded in 1884, is a very substantial monument of
the literary and business ability of French Canadian citizens. Not
only his it left behind all other French newspapers, but it claims
the largest cireulation in Canada in any language. Like the Star it
is first and foremost simply & newspaper.

La Patrie (French) was originally established as a Liberal and
Republican advocate by Ex-Mayor Beaugrand. Since the advent of
the Laurier Government into power this paper has become tho
property of the Tarte family, with possibly some English-speaking
shareholders. It is first and foremost the personal organ of Mr,
Tarte, the Minister of Public Works in the Dominion Government.
I have supported the Laurier Government at the last two elections.
In common with many others of both political parties, I have strong
objections to the Minister of Public Works and his organ. T object
to the compulsory eviction of any people from the land, whether
they are Irish tenants, Scotch crofters, French Acadians or Anticosti
settlers. Mr. Tarte and his personal organ Lo Patfrie, advocated the
foreible evietion of the Anticosti settlers, therefore I object to Mr.
Tarte and his organ, and will continue to do so. I may say here
that 1 deny the right of any hereditary aristocracy to levy rent from
land they have never cultivated. I therefore deny the right of Mr.
Menier to the Island of Anticosti, or the right of any one to sell it
to him. In fact, I deny the right of any man anywhere to the sole
awnership of such an exfensive tract of land. Upholding such
views, I cannot be expected to be very friendly to any minister of
any Crown upholding Mr. Menier's preposterous pretensions in the
matter of Anticosti. In future, I will, therefore, oppose not enly
Mr. Tarte, but any government that proposes to give him a portfolio.
For next election, therefore, the guestion will be, “ Will Tarte go
or will the whole Laurier Government go?’' Many like myself
supported the Laurier government at the last election chiefly on
account of their antagonism to the ex-leader (Tupper) and the
foolish methods of the chief Conservative agitators. This is not a
gquestion of French and English as some foolishly and wickedly
have made politics in Canada. Many men of French origin, both
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in Canada and old France, have been some of the ablest and best
men that the sun ever shone on.. [t is not a question of loyalty to
Britain and British institutions, for some British institutions, such
as landlordism and hereditary aristoerazy and church establishments
in England, Scotland and Wales need abolition altogether to reform
them. The want of a leader in Great Britain to take up these two
great questions is the cause of the weakness of the present Liberal
party in Great Britain. It is not a question between Republicanism
and Monarchy, for our present King, with all his experience, wide
family connections, and good common sense, is of far more use to
us as an Empire than any other man raised from the ranks would
be, under the present circumstances. But we ought to give the
farmers in England, Ireland, Scotland and Wales, freehold of their
lands, and abolish dual ownership, and nationalize the railways,
coal, gold, silver and iron mines, as well as the post-ofiice.

Lo Jowrnal (French), a new Conservative organ, started in 1899,
It is a morning daily.

Waorld Wide, a weekly budget of literary selections.

The True Witness is the Irish Catholie National and Home Rule
organ.

The Sharcholder, published in Montreal, is a very valuable paper
to business men.

L’Aurore (French Protestant organ).

Canadion Antiguarian and Numismatic Jowrnal, published quarterly.

Canadian Journal of Conmeree.

Canadion Jowrnal of Fabrics, published monthly, and the Canadian
Textile Directory, published by Mr. R. B. Biggar, Fraser Building, St.
Sacrament Street.

Canadian Record of Science, quarterly.

Clirely Guardian, published weekly in the interests of the Church
of England, by Mr. L. H. Davidson, 190 St. James Street.

Cunadian Medical Record, monthly.

Edueational Record, monthly.

Tnsurance and Fingnee Chronicle, published monthly by R. W.
Smith, 1724 Notre Dame BStreet.

Legal News, published weekly at the Gazefte office.

Lorveli’s Montreai Directory, published every year, price, $5.00.

Lovell's Montreal Business Divectory, $1.50.

Loweer Canada Jurist, monthly,
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Mantreal Laiw Reports, monthly.

Maontreal Produce Bulletin, weelkly,

Nuorthern Messenger, weekly.

Preshyterian Record, monthly.

The Real Estate Record, monthly, indispensable to every one infer-
ested in real estate in Montreal, J. C. Simpson & Co., 181 St. James
Streef.

Trade Bullctin,

Montreal Medical Journal, monthly.

The Trade Review, weekly.

Prestyterian  College Jowrnal, published monthly during each
session, is considered the leading journal of the kind in Canada.

University Gazette, published weekly during the session by the
students of MeGill College.

HISTORICAL TABLETS.

No. 1—Metealfe, near Sherbrooke, site of a large Indian village,
claimed to be the town of Hochelaga visited by Jacques Cartier in
1585.

No. 2—(Not loeated.) To the Hon. John Molson, the father of
steam navigation on the St. Lawrence. He launched the steamer
“Accommodation” for Montreal and Quebee service.

No. 3.—0n Custom House Square. “ The first Publie Square of
Montreal, 1657—La place du marché—granted by the Seigneurs
1676."

Nos. 4 and 5—Front of Custom House. This site was selected
and named in 1611 *“ La Place Royale,” by Samuel de Champlain,
the founder of Canada. Near this spot on the 18th day of May, 1642,
landed the founders of Montreal, commanded by Paul de Chomedy,
“Sieur de Maisonneuve,” The first proceeding was a (mass) religi-
ous service.

No, 6.—0n Port Sreet. Here was the Fort of Ville Marie, built
1643, demolished 1648, and replaced by the House of Monsieur de
Callidres, 1686,

No. 7.—0n Foundling Street. Site of the Chateau of Louis
Hector de Calliers, Governor of Montreal, 1684; of New France
1698-1703. He terminated the fourteen years’ war with the Iroquois
by treaty at Montreal, 1701.

No. 8.—Corner of St. Paul and St. Sulpice. Here was the first




46 MONTREAL AND VICINITY.

parish Church of Ville Marie, erected in 1656,

No. 9—0n Seminary wall, Notre Dame Street. The second
parish Church of Ville Marie, built in 1672, dedicated 1678, and
demolished in 1828, oceupied the middle of Notre Dame Street,

Noes. 10 and 11.—On the Seminary Building. * The Seminary of
St. Sulpice, founded at Paris by M. Jean Jacques Olier, 1641, estal-
lished at Ville Marie, 1657; M. Gabriel de Queylus, superior,
Seigneurs of the Island of Montreal, 1663."

“ Francois Dollier de Casson, first historian of Montreal, Captain
under Marshal de Fournier, then priest of St. Sulpice during 25
years. He died in 1701, curé of the Parish.

No. 12—85t. Helen near Notre Dame. Here stood until 1866 the
Chureh and Monastery of the Recollet Fathers, 1692, in which the
Anglicans from 1764 to 1789, and the Presbyterians from 1791 to
1792 worshipped.

No. 13.—On the Imperial Building (107 St. James Street), Near
this square, afterwards named La Place d’Armes, the founders of
Ville Marie first encountered the Iroguois, whom they defeated,
Chomedy de Maisonneuve killing the Indian Chief with his own
hands, 3rd March, 1644.

No. 14.—Corner Notre Dame and McGill. * Recollet Gate™: By
this gate Amherst took possession 8th September, 1760. General
Hull, U.8.; 25 officers and 300 men entered as prisoners of war, 20th
September, 1812,

No. 15.—Corner Notre Dame and Jacques Cartier Square, The
residence of the Hon. James McGill, founder of MeGill University,
1744-1873,

Nos. 16 and 17.—0On Chateau de Ramezay, opposite City Hall,
Chatean de Ramezay, built about 1705, by Claude de Ramezay, Gov-
ernor of Montreal, 1703, Headquarters of La Compagnie des Indes,
1745.  Official residence of the British Governors after the conquest.
Headguarters of the American Army, 1775, and of Special Counecil,
1837,

In 1775 this Chatean was the headquarters of the American
General Wooster, and here in 1776, under General Benedict Arnold,
the Commissioners of Congress, Benjamin Franklin, Samuel Chase
and Charles Carroll, of Carrolton, held council.

No. 18. — Notre Dame near St. Lambert Hill. Site of Christ
Church Cathedral, the first Anglican Church, 1814, burnt 1856,
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No. 19.—0n Hotel Dieu Building. Hotel Dien de Ville Marie,
founded in 1644 by Jeanne Mance. Transferred 1861 to this land
glven by Gabriél and Benoit Bassett. Removal of remains of
Jeanne Mance and 168 nuns in 1861.

No. 20.—Sherbrooke Street. near Montreal College, marking the
headquarters of General Amherst at the time of the surrender of
Montreal to the British power.

No, 91.—Notre Dame Street, east of St. Lambert Hill. In 1694
here stood the house of La Mothe Cadillae, the founder of Detroit.

No. 22 —Corner of Sherbrooke and Park Ave, Major-General,
James Murray, Brigade Commander under Wolfe at Quebec, 1754,
and afterwards first British Governor of Canada, encamped on this
plateau with the second division of Amherst's army upon the
surrender of Montreal and all Canada, 8th September, 1760,

No. 23.—Dollard Lane (at 226 St. James). To Adam Dollard des
Ormean, who with 16 colonists, 4 Algonquins, and 1 Huron, sacrifie-
ed their lives at the Long Sault of the Ottawa, and saved the
Colony.

No. 24—0On the Bonsecours Market. Sir William Johnson, of
Johnson Hall, on the Mohawk River, the eelebrated superintendent
of Indian affairs, the first American Baronet, commanded the Indian
allies with Amherst’s army in 1660. To them was issued in com-
memoration the first British Montreal medals. Here stood the
house of his son, Sir John Johnson, Indian Commissioner.

No. 25.—0n St, Paul Street, opposite Bonsecours Market. Site of
the house of General Ralph Burton, second Governor of Montreal
17635, He executed on the Plaing of Abraham at Wolfe's dying
command the military operation which finally decided the day.

No. 26.—0n Dalhousie Sguare Fire Station. To Brigadier-General
Thomas Gage, second in command under Amherst, first British Gov-
ernor of Montreal, 1760. Afterwards last British governor of
Massachusetts, 1775,

No, 27.—Near head of Simpson Street. Site of the residence of
Sir Alexander Mackenzie, discoverer of Mackenzie River, 1793, the
first European to cross the Rocky Mountains.

No. 28.—Corner Notre Dame and St. Peter Streets. Forrestier
House ; here General Montgomery resided during the winter of
1775-T6.

No. 29.—Corner of Dorchester and Bleury, This street was
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named in honor of Sir Guy Caileton, Lord Dorchester, commander
::;];i Brijtishligices and preserver of the colony duriné‘ the &meri-
vasion 5-T6; twice ;
Quebee Act, 1774, was ahtainef S e e Lt
o I\Ifo. 30.—0n !:3-t Paul St‘reet. near Bonsecours Market, The
m‘neau House ; six of their generations have dwelt here.
& No. 31.—0On Gault Bro.'s Warehouse (site of the old First Baptist
5 .:Ipelj, St. Helen Street. This tablet commenorates the organ-
ation on this site of the first Young Men’s Christian Association
on the American continent, November 25, 1851. El'ec}:ed on th
occasion of the Jubilee celebration, June 8th, 1901." s

AUTHORITIES CONSULTED.

The following authorities Were consn i ili i 55
Handbeok of the Dominion fDawaon'sl,h;ilzlllfr;{flm]f;:: intt? 1;11100]\.
lG?orge Bishop & Co.), All Round Route (Canada News Co,) :S;B(E
Railway Guide and Starke's Almanae (Theo. Robinson), * ﬁéminis:
cenc'es of my Visit to the Grey Nunnery,” (for sale the;‘e] Histor
of Notre Dame de Lourdes (for sale by the Listers of Not‘l'e‘ D -
.de Lourdes), Historical Sketches of Notre Dame of Montreal ?;2:
sale at the church). Our Caughnawagas in Bgypt (W. Drysdale &
Co.), History of the Montreal Prison (J. D, Bort.hwiém Th
Montroal Herald, McNally's Pocket Cyclopaedia, Hayden’s Dicti'onare
of Dates, Montreal Directory, 1890-91, C.P.R. Timetable, with noté:
gﬁlgl;eet;n;‘: m;}anadie;n Guide Book, George Murray, ' Sights an&

ontr W : :
i Dg;-ecttg:;'lgfg_g‘ ‘W. Lighthall ;: Our City and Our Sports,

FFor the historical account of the origin of the names of th
streets T am indebted to a baper contributed by Mr. Woodly, of Got:
i:&;tﬁ;:m;i (a {I;oy 13 years old), to the Witness, and also f(‘)l' infor-

ler i y ick’ i
e Ongthe Sa?n ehs (ljjfje';t:f Rev. Mr. Borthwick's contribution to the

For. the benefit of readers of this book, who may wish to et
some information about other places outside of Montreal. [ mg
statle that after perusing all the publications I coull get n,ay ha:ﬁ
gn m.this li_ne, I know of no more useful book than Appleton’s
: ;niﬂl‘al:l Guide ]3:001{. The Appletons were fortunate in securing

e services of Prof. Roberts, of King's College, Nova Scotia, who

is recognized, on all hands
} . as the best versed in Canadi iter
of our living authors, i
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SUBURBS AND NEIGHBORING TOWNS AND VILLAGES:.
[N.B.—The distanca is calculated from tne Post-Office.]

CAavGHNAWAGA, an Indian village opposite Lachine.

Corear Sr. Lovis—Two miles from Montreal, east of Mount
Royal, has large stone guarries. Population about 3,500,

CorEar S1. PiErre.—On the upper Lachine Road, three miles
from Montreal; has large brick works. Population about 300.

Core, 81, Lyc.—Three miles from Montreal, on the Lachine
Road. Population, 250.

Core 81, PAavL—Three miles from Montreal, on the Lower
Lachine Road. Population about 2,000.

Core Visrratiox—On Papineau Road, two miles east of Mont-
real. Population about 600,

Husrizenoy.—Huntingdon stands in more close relation to
Mentreal than any other outside town in the Dominion. Montreal
is particularly interested in the welfare of Huntingdon, and Hunting-
don is partieularly interested in the welfare of Montreal. When
the Huntingdon people want anything that they have not got them-
eelves, they don’t go to Ottawa or Toronto (as others that might be
mentioned),. they come to Montreal. Huntingdon is a thriving little
town, surrounded by a fine farming country, and the centre of the
chief settlement of the English-speaking people in south-western
Quebee. The Huntingdon district (as it is commonly called) is
renowned for its cheese and Clydesdale horses, Its thrifty farmers
are always the best customers of ecity merchants. Huntingdon
village has two industries that do it credit. First, the well-known
cstablishment of Daniel Boyd & Co., where all kinds of agricultural
implements are manufactured, such asg ploughs, harrows, reapers,
and mowing machines, hay-presses and other articles too numerous
to mention in a short notice of this kind. Boyd & Co. are also
agents for the famous Waterous Engine Works, Brantford, Ontario.
Boyd & Co. ara the only manufacturers of the Dedsrick Hay Presses in
this section, and do a large trade in them. Huntingdon has two
railways, the Grand Trunk and the St. Lawrence & Adirondack, with
14 trains daily. Its excellent facilities of communication have ii-
creased the attendance at its celebrated academy, which at the last
ALA. examination obtained first place both for competitors over and
under 18 years of age. The local newspaper is the well-known




1] MONTREAL AND VICINITY,

Gleaadr, whose editor, Mr. Sellar. is recognized as one of the best
authorities in Canada on anything relating to Canadian history.
The Huntingdon annual exhibition is always a SUCCESs.

LaAcHisE—Nine miles from Montreal, is one of the favorite
swmmer resorts in the neighborhood of Montreal. It is the prineipal
boating place in the vieinity of Montreal. There are regattas on
the lake opposite the town annually. Af Lachine the boats shooting
the 1apids always connect with the Montreal trains, morning and
evening, during summer, for the exeursionists who come to shoot
the rapids, many of whom come a long distance on purpose. Shoot-
ing the Lachine Rapids of late years is something like going to see
Niagara Ifalls, The population is about 5,000,

LAPRAIRIE—A village on the South side of the River St.
Lawrence, nine miles sonth-west of Montreal. Population about
2.000. During the summer Season the ferry hoat makes three trips
a day to Montreal and pback. 'The first railway in British North
America was constructed from here to St. John, in 1836, 1t was
discontinued and the rails taken up a few years after. The hest
hotel is the Montreal House.

LoNGUEUIL—On the south side of the St Lawrence, opposite
Hochelaga, Some years ago a railway was run on the ice across the
river from Montreal to Longueuil. Population, 3,500.

Losaur Poiyte—Six miles east of Montreal, known now
throughout the world as the site of the lunatic asylum, which was
burned, in which many human beings were burned to cinders. The
exact number is not known. Population, about §00.

MarsoNnsEuvE—East of Hochelaga, about four miles from Mont-
real. Population, about 1,350

MoNTREATL JUneTioN.—A new village on the ¢. P. R. Montreal
and Toronto line, five miles from Montreal. Population, about 200,

MorsT Rovarn Aveste lies east of Mount Royal, at the terminus
of the street railway. Population, about 400.

MorxT RovAn VALE, off Cote St. Lue Road.

150,
NorrE DAME DE GrAcE—A small village at the back of the

Population, about

Mountain. Population, about 400.

NoTne DAME DES NErgrs lies in rear of Mount Royal. Popula-
tion ahout 800 ;

Orrrevost lies at the west end of Mount Royal, Population

about 1,200,

e e | R M

—
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Perir Vicrace Tuorcor, near Cote St Paul
200,

SAULT AU Rrconrer is near the east end of the island of Mont-
real, about seven miles from the city., Population, about 400,

.ST. CuxrecoNpE.—Anold town joined to the west end of Montreal
with a corporation of its own, Population, about 12,000, .

S1. LAMBERT.—A town on the south side of the St. Lawrence,
i}]:]ﬁmsite Montreal at the end of Victoria Bridge. Population, about
1.500.

S1. Lovrs pu Mire Exp, formerly part of Cote St. Louis, has a
population of about 11,000,

WesrsmousT is prineipally inhabited by Montreal business
men, It is at the western terminus of the St. Catharine Street line
of the street railway. Fopulation, about 9,500.

MoskLANDs, formerly the residence of the Governors of Canada,
now gecupied by nuns who call it Villa Maria, is located here. The
convent, was nearly destroyed by fire in 1893, Fortunately there
were no lives lost; but the financial loss of the sisters was very
heavy and only partially covered by insurance.

S1. HeENrY is an ineorporated town with a population of about
10,000, It is about three miles west of Montreal. :

Verpun, formerly called Lower Lachine Road, is about five miles
west of Montreal, on the banks of the St. Lawrence. The new
Protestant Insane Asylum is built hers. A ferry crosses from here
to La Tortue, & small village on the other side of the river.

Population, about

HOW TO VISIT THE PRINCIPAL PLACES OF INTEREST IN
THE SHORTEST TIME FOR THE LEAST
MONEY.

In whatever gquarier of the city you are lodging, the first place to
visit is Notre Dame Church.

From the Windsor, if you do not wish to hire a cab, you may get
an electric car at the dcor to fake you near the Post-Office, and
then a few paces from you is Notre Dame Church and several other
places of interest. A few blocks east from there is the new City
Hali, the Court House, Nelzoa's Monument, S{. Gabriel Street old
Presbyterian Church, and nob far away is the Bonsecours Market
and Bonsecours Church. While there you may visit the Harbor and
the new Custom House about half a mile further west. Then walk
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up McGill Street, to Victoria Square, from whence you may get the
street cars to take you to the prinecipal places of interest up-town,
First visit the Notre Dame de Lourdes, near the corner of St. Cathe-
rine and St. Denis Streets, From thence, retrace your steps
westward till yon come to Bleury Street, and there is the old Jesuits
Chureh and College. Then turn up to St. Catherine Street west,
till you come to the Art Gallery, corner of Phillips Square. Then
visit the English Cathedral and the Museum, of the Natural History
Society. Take the street cars till you come wesi as far as Guy
Street and visit the Grey Nunnery at noon, After dinner hire a
¢ab to take you to McGill College (there is a very interesting
musenm in connection with the College, which the visitor may enter
on payment of a small entrance feel), and close by are the two city
reservoirs; and if you don't wish to hire a cab to take you to tha
top of the mountain, you can go up by the elevator for five cents.
Then, after you have taken a good view of the surrounding country
from the ton of the mountain, and visited the two cemeteries, yon
can come back to the city by the street cars, and you have a day
well spent, and not over a dollar of necessary expense, hesides your
hotel bill.
BANKS.

Banle of Montreal.—See Page 8.

Canadian Bank of Commerce, Canada Life Bldg., cor. St. James
and St. Peter Streets, A. M. Crombie, Local Manager.

Merchants' Bank of Canada, 205 St. James Street, Andrew
Allan, President ; Geo. Hague, General Manager.

Merchants' Bank of Halifax, Notre Dame Street.

Bank of British North America, 140 St. James Street. H. Stike-
man, General Manager.

Quebec Bank, New York Life Building. T. McDougall, Local
Manager.

The Molson Bank, 200 St. James Street,

Bank of Toronto, 168 St. James Street.

Ontario Bank, 8 Place d’Armes. R. N. King, Local Manager.

Trnion Bank of Canada, 1664 Notre Dame Street. C. H. Balfour,
Local Manager.

Banlk of Nova Scotia, 130 St. James Street.

Banque d'Hochelaga, 107 St. James Street.

Bangue Nationale, 101 St. James Street.
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ORIGIN OF THE NAMES OF SOME OF THE STREETS.

The first names given to the streets of old Montreal were given
by Mr. Dollier de Cagson, the Superior of the Seminary, the priests
of the Seminary being the seigneurs of Montreal.

Amherst Street was named in honor of General Amherst. Some
of his exploits were the taking of Louisburg from the French in
1758, He was engaged in the capture of Quebec, and compelled the
capitulation of Monfreal in 1760,

Avlmer Street was named after Lord Aylmer, who was Governor-
General of Canada in 1831,

Champlain Street was named after Samuel de Champlain, the
famous explorer. He founded Quebee in 1608, He was the first
Governor of Canada in 1633.

Common Street iz so called on account of the common pasturage
for cattle along the banks of the river in that locality in the olden
times.

Craig Street was named after BSir James Craig, who was
Governor of Canada from 1807 to 1811. In the olden times a creek
ran where Craig street now is. There were several wooden bridges
zeross the ereek where the street ¢ars now run.

Dollard Lane was called after Dollard, a French Commander,
who made himself famous in the wars between the French and the
Indians.

Dorchester Street was called after Sir Guy Carleton, Governor-
General of Canada, after the British conquest. He was governor
from 1796 to 1797.

Fortification Lane was called after the old fortification wall, the
north side of which was built on that site.

Frontenac Street was called in honor of the popular French
Covernor of Canada of that name. He was governor from 1672 to
1682. He built Fort Frontenac, now ealled Kingston.

Gosford Street was named aftsr the Barl of Gesford, who was
Governor-General in 1835,

MeGill Street was called after the Hon, James Me@ill, the
founder of MceGill University, and the first English-speaking Mayor
of Montreal.

Maisonneuve Street was named after Monsieur de Maisonneuve,
the rounder of Montreal.
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Metealfe Street was called after Lord Metealfe, Governor-General
in 1842,

Montealm Street was named after ths famous French General
Montealm, who fell on the Plains of Abraham, when Quebee was
taken in 1759.

Murray Street, named after General Murray, the first Governor-
General of Canada after the Conguest.

Papineau Road was named after the Hon. L. J. Papineau, the
leader of the French-Canadian Rehellion in 1837,

Richmond Street was named after the Duke of Richmond. who
was (Governor in 1818 and 1819, He died on the 20th August, 1819,
from the effects of the bite of a vet fox.

Sherbrooke Street was called aftsr Sir John Cops Sherbrooke,
who was Governor in 1816 and 1818.

Wolfe Street was named after General Wolie, the hero of the
capture of Quebec in 1759

GUIDE TO THE PRINCIPAL STREETS,

The numbers on the streets ron from east to west, and from the
river towards the mountain, or north and south,

The prinecipal Streets of the city, running east and west, are:—
Wellington, William, Commissioners, St. Paul, Notre Dame, (about
five miles in length from Hochelaga to St. Henry, the east end of
which was formerly called St. Mary and the west end St Joseph
Street; these three streets are now under the name of one street).
St. James Street; the west end of this street was formerly called St
Bonaventure Street. Osborne is a continuation of Lagauchetiere.
Craig and St. Antoine Streets are continuations one of the other.
Lagauchetiere, St. Catherine, Dorchester, Mignonne, Ontario and
Sherbrooke Streets. A larg: portion of the dwellings of the upper
classes of Montreal are on this last street. [Latour, Jurors, and
Vitre form one street.

The principal streets running from the river towards the
Mountain are St. Denis, St. Lawrence Main. St. Peter, Bleury and
Park Avenue are a continuation one of the other. Bonsecours is 4
continuation of 8t. Denis Street towards Bonsecours Market. St
Elizabeth Street and Laval Avenue are a continuation one of the
other. Cadieux Street is a continuation of St. Constant Street. St
Dominigue Street. St Urbain Street is a continuation of St. Sulpice

wh
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Street, Mance Street is a continuation of St. George Street.
MceGill Street.  University Street. Metealfe Street is a continuation
of Cathedral Street. Peel Street is a continuation of Windsor
Street, Mountain Street,

The following stree¢ts have different names at different parts.
The guestion of having a single name for them has been long under
discussion : — Mountain and MeCord, Hanover and University; St
Peter, Bleury and Park Avenuse; Berthelet, Ontario and Burnside
Place ; Champ de Mars and Rousseau ; College and 8t. Paul ;
William snd Foundling : Latour, Jurors and Vitre; St. George and
Mance; St. Constant and Cadieux; St. Lambert and St Lawrence;
Bonsecours and St. Denis; Gosford and Sanguinet; Monarque and
Papineau Road; Port and St. Nicholas; Callieres and St Francois
Xavier; Windsor and Peel; Cathedral, Meteal?: and MeTavish;
Brunswick and Union Avenue; St. Elizabeth and Laval Avenue; St.
Charles Borrommes, Arvcade and Mitchison Avenue; Guy and Cote
fles Neiges Road; Quiblier and Tupper; Comte and Lincoln Avenue;
Longueuil Ferry and St, Suzanne; Pantaleon and German,

SPECIAL NOTICHES.

John Lovell & Son have published their thirteenth edition of
Lovell's Business Directory, containing an index to streets, tariif
of Customs, and names, business and address of every firm or
person doing business in Montreal. Tt is corrected up to July, 1800,
A miscellaneous directory has heen compiled with great care and
adds to the book's worth., A guide to streets will serve as a handy
reference. The binding is tasty and veliable, In board, the
Directory sells for $1.50—400 pages.

0. L. Furuer, Advertising Agent, Lovell's Montreal Directory.
Advertisements prepared and placed in any medinm anywhere; 25
years’ experience. Office, 112 Selby, Westmount. House same
address,

Davip WarTeRs, 494 8t, James Street. MWstablished 1876, Largest
stock in Canada of scaree and standard Canadian and American
new and second-hand books, steel engravings, water colors and oil
paintings. Highest cash prices paid for clean and complete works,
paper cover novels and general literature; also antique mahogany
furniture, ancient silverware, brass goods, old pistols, guns, swords
and other objects of antiquity.
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Prrer Lyarnrn & Soxs—The finest built and the most architec-
turally beantiful city on the continent is Montreal. The greatest
credit is due to the architects and builders of the city; and in the
foreground of building contractors stands the celebrated firm of
Messrs, Peter Lyall & Sons, whose achievements as builders stand
out prominently not only all over the Metropolis, but all over the
Dominion, Mr. Peter Lyall established this business in 1875, after
having acguired a wide range of practical experience both in his
native country of Scotland and in Canada. Deeds speak louder
than words, and we cannot record the achievements of this cele-
brated firm in a better way than by mentioning a few of the
substantial monuments of their work, such as—The Royal Victoria
Hospital, Royal Insurance Building, Macdonald Engineering Building,
New York Life Insurance Building, New Star Building, and New
Grand Trunk Offices,

Wicnron, MorrisoN & Co.—In the same category as Peter Lyall
& Bons, just mentioned, comes another famous firm of building
contractors—Wighton, Morrison & Co. — who are also leaving
substantial monuments of their gkill, as may be seen at a glance
at the following out of many other buildings they have put up—
Greeushields, on Victoria Square; Mining and Chemistry Building,
at MeGill ; Bank of Toronto, new Galt Mills, at Valleyfield: Birks'
Building, St. Catherine Street; Redpath Library Building, Canada
Jute Co. Buildings, and various other buildings too numerous to
mention in a short complimentary notice.

A. MADORE,
STAMPS FOR COLLECTIONS,

Fews Anent and Tobacconist,

2 BEAVER HALL HILL,

MONTREAL.

INDEX TO STREETS.

Adeline, at St. Antoine Market,

Albert (East), off 121 Delorimier Av.

Albert, off 42 Chaboillez Bquare.

Albert, off 116 Canning.

Albert Ave., off 125 Canning.

Albert Lane, off 205 Guy.

Albina, off 502 8t. Denis,

Allard, off 212 Panet.

Allard Lane, off 152 Plessis.

Amherst, off 1307 Notre Dame.

Ampleman Lane, off 221 Papinean
Road.

Anderson, off 17 Jurors.

Ann, off 13 William,

Aqueduet, off 960 Dorchester.

Arcade, off 17 Guilbault,

Archambault Lane, off 20 Fullum;

Argyle Ave., off 365 Aqueduct.

Agh Ave., (formerly Rosario), off 92
Charron.

Atwater, from Canal to Wheelhouse,

Aylmer, off 2179 St. Catherine.

Dagg, off 521 St. Lawrence.

Halmeral, off 2080 St. Catherine.

Bannockburn Lane, off 522 Seigners.

Barclay, off 1173 Notre Dame,

Barrack, see Berrl,

Barre, off 17 Eleanor.

Bagin, off 41 MecCord.

Bayle, off 31 St. Mark.

Beauchamp Ave,, off 8314 St Urbain.

Beaudry, off 201 Craig,

Beaver Hall Hill from  Victoria
Square up.

Beaver Hall Square, head of Beaver
Hall HIillL.

Belmont, off 56 Beaver Hall Hill,

Berard, off 1353 Ontario.

Beresford, off 919 Wellington.

Bernadette, off 1664 Bt, Catherine.

Berri (formerly Barrack), off 1424
Notre Dame.

Berri, off 61 Dubord.

Berry Lane, off 334 Craig,

Berthelet, off 226 Bleury.

Bishop, off 2508 St. Catherine.

Bishop Ave,, off 203 2t. Antoine.

Bishop Lane, off 286 St. Ignace.

Risson, off 163 St. Antoine,

Bleury. off 669 Craig,

Honaparte, off 38 Visitation.

Bonsecours, off 87 St. Paul.

Bourgeois, off 625 Wellington.

Bourgeois Ave,, off 1713 Outario.

Boyer, off 120 Sanguinet.

Brant Lane, off 18 Delorimier Awve.

Breboeuf (formerly Champlain), off
Rachel.
Breénnan, off 22 Prince Street.
Brien Place, off 315 Beaudry.
Britiapnia, off § St. Htienne.
Brock, off 1222 Notre Dame.
Bronsden Lane, off 584 Dorchester.
Bruchesi, off 2137 Notre Dame.
Brunet, off 236 St. Elizabeth.
Brunswick, off 708 Dorchester.
Buckingham Ave., off 2637 St. Cathe-
rine.
Burnett, off TH6 Delorimier Ave.
Burnside Place, off 82 Union Ave.
Busby, off 785 Craig.
Cadieux, off 461 Craig.
Callieres, off 2 Foundling.
Campeau, off 1358 Notre Dame.
Canal Street, off 300 Wellington.
Canning, off 338 St. Antoine,
Capital, off 2 St. Sulpice.
Carleton Ttoad, off 63 MeTavish.
Catheart, off 102 Mansfield.
Cathedral, off 108 St. Antoine.
Centre, off 459 Wellington,
Cerat, off 39 Si. Dominique.
Chaboeillez, off 532 8t. James.
Chaboillez Square, off 200) Notre
Dame. '
Chambly Ave., off 286 Visitation,
Cham de Mars, off 19 Gosford.
Champlain, (see Breboeuf).
Champlain, off 1248 St. Catherine
Charbonneau, off 573 8t. Lawrence.
Charlevoix, off 540 St. Patrick.
Charlotte, off 130 St. Constant.
Charron, off 645 Wellington.
Chateauguay, off 131 Island,
Chatham, off 352 St. Antoine.
Chausge, off 1 Bherhrooke.
Chenneville, off 613 Craig.
Cherrier, off 402 St. Denis.
Cherrter, off 900 St. Dominigue.
Chomedy, off 2786 St. Catherine.
Church, off 1775 Ontario,
City Councillors, off 2166 St. Cathe-
rine.
Clarke, now Mitchison,
Closse, off 2813 St. Catherine.
Colborne, oft 2067 Notre Dame.
Colerana, off 337 Charron.
College, now St, Paul.
Comissioners, off 111 MeGill.,
Common, facing docks, foot of Me-
Gl
Conecord, off 271 Bleury.

Archives de la Ville de

Montréal
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Conde, off 479 Wellington.

Congregation, off 084 Wellington,

Contann, off 8¢ Campeau.

Conway, off 25 St Etienne.

Costigan Lane, off 263 Richmond,

Cote Ave., off 304 Sanguinet,

Cote des Neiges Road, off 1227 Sher-
brooke.

Cote, off 581 Crailg.

Coursol, off 198 Canning,

Courville, now a part of Prince Ar-
thur,

Cralg, contipuation of St Antoine
East,

Creseent, off 952 Dorchester.

Cuvillior, off 178 Notre Dame.

Cypress, off 130 Peel,

Dalhousie, off 128 William,

Dalhousie Square, at 180 Naotre
Dame.

D'Argenson, off 490 8t Patrick.

Darling, offt 190 Notre Ilame,

Davidson, off 191 Notre Dame.

De Bresoles, off 43 St. Sulpice.

Deligle, off 98 Canning,

Delorimier Ave., formerly Colborne
Ave., off 893 Notre Dame,

Demontigny, formerly Mignonne,
off 227 8f, Urbain,

Desalaberry, off 1111 Notre Dame.

Desery, off 257 Notre Dame.

Pesrivieres, off 46 St. Antoine.

Desrivieres Ave., off 0 Destivierds,

Devienne, off 227 S5t. George.

Dollard, off 224 8t James.

Dominion, off 8077 Notre Dame.

Dominion Ave., off 8 Dominion.

Dominion Square, on Windsor, Peel
and Metealfe,

Donegana, off 26 Windsor.

Dorchester, a leading street, east to
west, below BSt. Catherine,

Dowd, formerly St. Germain, off 90
Bleury,

Drolet, off 15 5t. Louils Square.

Drummond, off 2450 St, Catherine,

Dubord, off 87 Sanguinet.

Dubrule Lane, off 35 Versaillas.

Dufaux, off 163 Si. Elizabeth,

Dufferin, off 8 Rachel,

Dufferin Ave,, off 420 Richmond.

Dufresne, off 68) Notre Dame.

Duke, off 97 Wellington.

Duluth Ave., off 758 Amherst.

Dumarais, off 151 Cadieux.

Dupre, off 1925 Notre Dame.

Duquette Lane, off 1 Versailles,

Tavard, off 88 Sebastopol.

Durocher, off 735 Sherbrooke,

REdzehill Ave., off 1160 Dorchester.

Edinburgh, now Coleraine.
Tleanar, off 286 William,

Elizabeth Terrace, off 25 St Eliza-
beth,

Emile, near Arcade,

Brie, off 45 Shaw,

Erneat, off 582 St, Denis,

Beplanade Ave., from IDhiluth Ave.

Iasex Ave., off 1265 Dorchester.

Evans, off 205 8t. Urbain.

Evans lLane, from 5§ Exans,

Farm, off 423 Wellington

Forfar, off 67 St Etlenne,

Forgue Ave., off 183 Guy,

Porsythe, off 204 Therville

Fortier, off 381 St Lawrenca.

Fortification Lane, off 76 St. Gabriel

FPorfune, off 713 Wellington.

Foundling, off 9 MeGill.

Fournter, off 302 Seigneurs:

Friponne, off B4 8t Paul.

Frontenac, off 603 Notre Dame.

Prontenag Lane, off 50 Frontenac.

Fulford, off 38¢ Bt. Antolne.

Fullum, off 775 Notre Dame.

Ffullum  Lane, off 204 Fullum.

iain, off 876 Notre Dame,

German, now City Hall Avenue.

Gosford, off 401 Cralg,

Grand Trank Street, off 10 Conde. i

Grant, off 1272 Notre Dape.

Grant Lane, off 36 Dufresne,

Grey Nun, off 12 William.

Grothe, off 1256 Miznonne.

Groulx Lane, off 3 Versailles.

Guilbault, off 555 St. Lawrenge.

Guy, off 2392 St Catherine.

Guy Ave,, off 157 Guy.

Hanover, off 824 Dorchesfer,

Harbour, off 530 Notre Dame.

Harmony, off Amity, near Fullum

Hermine, off 701 Craig.

Hibernia, off 845 Wellington,

Hochelaga Market, gt Desery Btrest,

Hospital, off 78 St. Francois Xavier.

Houle, off 37 Wolfe,

Hudon, off 2¢ Desery.

Hunfer, off 12 Canning.

Hutehison, off 707 Sherbrooke.

Iberville, off 621 Notre Dame.

Imperial Ave,, off 652 St, James,

Inspector, off (i St. Antoine.

Island, off 226 St. Patrick.

Jaeques Cartier, off 1330 Notre Dame,
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Jagques Cartier Sguare, oft 155
Notre Dame,

Jardin, formerly St. Francis, off 207
Centre,

Jean, off 1070 St Lawrence,

Jette Lane, off 45 Darling.

Joachim Lane, off 16 Dufresne.

Joly Lane, off 1513 Ontario.

Josephat Lane, off 134 Papineau Rd,

Josephine, off 240 St. Urbaii,

Jubilee Ave., off 240 Guy.

Jules Ave., off Tansley.

Jurors, off Victoria Bguare,

Kennedy, now called Colborune.

Kent, off 67 Shaw.

King, off 28 Wellington,

Kinkora Ave., off 088 Dorchester.

Knox, off 3§ Hibernia.

Labelle, off 1638 Si. Catherine.

Laberge Lane, off 7 Sanguinet.

Lacroix, off 402 Cralg,

Lafayette Ave., off 14516 8t Andre

Lafontaine, off 277 Visitation.

Lagauchetiers, off 0 DBleury.

Lagauchetiere Lane, off 406 Lagau-
chetiere.

L'Allemand, off 2601 Notre Dame.

Laprairie, formerly St Andrew's, off
304 Bt. Patrick,

Larin Ave., off 195 Chatham.

Larin Place, off Taillefer Ave.

Lariviere, off 583 Panet.

Lariviere Lane, off 324 Fullum.

Latour, off Victoria Sguare.

Laval Ave., offi 445 Sherbroolie,

Law's Lane, off 380 Pine Ave.

Leclaire Ave., off 342 Richmond.

Leduc Lane, off 243% St. Dominigue.

Lemoine, off 147 MeGill,

Le¢on IIL., off 166% St. Denis.

Leroux, off 361 Seigneurs,

Le Royer, off 30 St. Sulpice.

Linceln Ave., off 478 Guy.

Lionais, off 960 Cadieux.

Little Manufacturers, oft 152 Shearer,

Little St. Antoine, off 320 8t. James,

Liverpool, off 833 Wellington,

Lock Lane, off 320 Richmond.

Logan, off 227 Visitation.

Logan, now Stadacona.

Logan Farm, off Papineau Road.

Longueuwil Ferry Lane, off §40 Notre
Dame.

Longuenil Lane, off 1549 Notre Dame.

Lorne Avenue, off 19 Milton.

Lorne Crescvent, off 40 Prince Arthur.

Louis Hypolite, 32 St. Andre,

Lusignan, off 264 St. Antoine,
Macgregor, off Slhnpson.

Mackay, off 2505 S, Catherine.
Magdalen, off 603 Wellitgton.
Maisonneuve, 'off 1206 St. Catherine:
Mance, oft 2065 St. Catherine.
Mamsfield, off 2383 St. Catherine.
Manufacturers, off 144 Shearer.
Maple, near 265 Sherbrooke.

Maple Aye., off 2120 Notre Dame.
Maple Awe., off 102 Mullins:
Marianna, off 252 Fullum West,
Marie Anne, off Dufferin.

Marie Aunng, off 1174 Bt Lawrence
Marie Joseph, off 31 8t. Andre.
Marie Louise Ave., off 28} Sanguinet
Market, off 1087 5t, Lawrance.
Market Sguare, off 181 St. Lawrence.
Mariborough, off 135 St Catherine.
Mathew, off ™7 Ontario.

Mayor, off 206 Bleury.

MeCord, off 2212 Notre Dame,
MeGill, from Victorin Siguare to the
river;

Mc@ill College Ave., off 2286 3¢
Catherine.

MeTavish, off 887 Sherbrooke.

Menal, off 86 TFerfar.

Menard, off Vitre, near Sanguinet

Metealfe, off 2352 St. Catherine.

Metealfe Lane, off 800 Richmond.

Mignonne, now Demontigny, off 227
St, Urbaln.

Mignonne, now Rouville.

Mill, between Upper Basin of Canal
and River,

Milton, off Shuter.

Milton Ave,, off 102 Mance.

Mitehison, formerly Clarke, off Du-
luth Ave,

Mitchison Ave:., rear of 604 St. Law-
rence,

Monarque, off 1000 Notre Dame,
Mondelet, now called Hleanor.
Monet Lane, off 224 Aqueduct.

Montmorenci, off 36 Grand Trunk

Montana, off 28 Cherrier.

Montealm Ave., off 485 Notre Dame.
Montealm, off 1252 Notre Danie.
Moreau, off 847 Notre Dame.
Morland, off 287 St. Martin.
Moulton Ave:, off 458 St. Lawrence,
Mount St. Charles Place, off 115 St
Dominigue.

Mount Royal Ave., off 1260 St. Law-
rence,

Mountain, off 2212 Notre Dame.
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Mount St. Mary Ave,, off 271 8t,
Antoine,

Mullins, off 48% Wellington.

Munro, off 24 Champlain,

Murray, off 2130 Notre Dame.
Napoleon, off 728 St. Lawrenoe.
Napoleon Road, Charlevoix.
Nazareth, off 130 Wellington.
Nillada, off 195 Dufresne.
Nonancourt, off §12 Panet,
Nonancourt, off 241 Papineau Road,

Normand, off § Foundling,

Notre Dame, leading street from east
to West.

Notre Dame de Lourdes, off 403 Daor-
chester.

O'Leary Ave., from Railway Track,

Oller, off 31 McCord,

Outario, off 237 Bleury.

Osborne, from 118 Cathedral.

Osear Lane, off St. Chas. Borrommee

Ottawa, from U8 Queen.

Overdale Ave., pff 372 Aqueduct.

Oxenden Ave., off 317 Prin¢e Anthur.

Palace, off Lagauchetiere, west of
Beaver Hall Hill,

Panet Place Lane, off 80 Panet.

Panet, off 1145 Notre Dame;

Panet, St. Jean Bantiste Ward, now
Lasalle.

Pantaleon, off 328 Duluth Ave.

Pantaleon, in rear of 110 Laval Ave:

Papiheaun Road, off Papineau Square.

Papineaw Bquare, off 1005 Notre
Dame,

Paris, from 201 Charron.

Park Ave., from north end of
Bleury.

Parker, off 358 Visitation.

Parthenais, off 815 Notre Dame.

Parthenais Square, now Parthenais
Street,

Patergon, off 218 Delorimier Ave.

Paxton Awe., off 305 Richmond.

Payette, off 20 Chatham.

Pea Lane, off 11 Roy Lane.

Peel, continuation of Windsor, from
Dominion Square.

Peel Ave,, in rear of 175 Peel.

Perrault Court, now St. Agathe,

Perrault Lane, off 571 Craig.

Perthins, off 27 Campeau.

Phillipg Place, between Beaver Hall
Square and Phillips  Square,

Phillips Sguare, at 2192 8t. Catherine,

Pleard TLane, off 1721 8t Catherine,

Pichette, off ‘200 Barre Lane:

Pine Ave.,, off 64 St Lawrence.
Place d’Armes, off 1701 Notr¢ Dame

Place d'Armes Hill, off 1001 St. James:
Plage Royale, (old Custom House
Square), off 400 2t. Paul.

Flateau, off 31 Manee.

Plateau Ave, 1080 St. Catherine,
Platt, off 1791 Ontario,

Plessis, off 1333 St. Catherine,
Plymouth Grove, in rear of 385 St
Antoine.

Poele Lane, now Taillefer Ave,

Port, off 10 Comman.

Poupart, off 637 Notre Dame.

Prefontaine, off 207 Notre Dame.
Prieur Lane, off 521 Seigneurs.
Prince, off 78 Wellington.

Prince Arthur, off 520 St. Lawrence.

Prince George Ave,, off 280 Fuallum.

Prevencal Lane, off 142 Dufresne.

Providenee, off 1181 Mignonne.

Provost, off 117 Desery.

Queen, off 54 Wellington,

Quesnel, off 114 Fulford.

Rachel, off 7l St. Lawrence,

Railway Track, west from G.T.R.
Depot, along the traclk,

Rapallo, off 303 Graig.

Recollet, off 207 MeGill.

Redpath, off 1059 Sherbrooke.

Richardszon, off Richmond, south of
the ecanal.

Richmond, off 543 St James,

Richmond Ave., off 20 Richmond Sq.

Richmond Sguare, off 308 St. Antoine.

Rivard, off 210 Duluth Awve.

Riverside, off Conway.

Rivet, off 40 Fullum.

Robb, off 95 Poupart,

Robillard, off 114 Moreau.

Robin, off 250 Visitation,

Rolland, off 37 Mountain.

Ropery, off 364 Centre.

Raosario, now Ash Ave.

Roussean, off 14 Champlain.

Rouville, formerly Mignonne, off 222
St Michel.

Roy, off 620 St, Lawrence.

Roy Lane, off 1015 Notre Dame.

Rosel, off 107 Hibernia,

Rushbreok, off 123 Hibernia.

Rutherford Ave., off 17 Drummond.

Ryde, offt 57 Hibernia,

Sanguinet, off 401 Cralg.

School House, formerly St. Philippe,
oft 18 Mountain.

Seotland, ses Argyle Ave,

-

7 —

Seaton, north from Rachel.

Seaton, sec Champlain.

Seaver, oil 16 Robillard.

Sebastopol, off 537% Wellington.

Seigneurs, off ¥4 Bt. Antoloe.

Seminary, off 164 MeCord.

Seymour Ave,, off 1222 Dorchester:

Shannon, oft 207 Wellington.

Shaw, off 959 Notre Dame,

Shearey, off 168 Centre.

Sherbrooke, a leading street f{rom
east to west, above St. Catherine.

Shuter, off 157 Sherbrooke,

Simpson, off 1084 Sherbrodke.

Smith, off 41 MecCord,

Soulanges, formerly $t. Henry, off
201 Grand Trunk.

Spiers’ Lamne, off 102 Prince

St. Adolphus, off 1016 Notre Dame.

Ste. Agathe, off 28 Cadleux.

St. Agnes, off § Farm.

8t. Albert, now Chateauguay,

St. Alexander, ofi T13 Craig.

St. Alexis, off 4% St. Sacrament.

8t. Alexis, off 5) Poupart.

St. Alphonse, off 1310 St. Catherine.

St. Amable, off 18 Jacque Cartier Sq.

St, Andre, off 1570 St. Catherine.

St, Andre Lane, off 145 8t. Andre.

St. Andrew's now Laprairie,

St. Ann's Market, off 03 McGill:

St. Antoine, continuation of Craig,

St. Aptoine Market, ¢or, Mountain
and St James.

St. Augusiin, off 125 MeCord,

St. Bernard, off 101 Bleury.

St. Bopaventure, now part of St.

James.

8t. Catherine, leading street, east
to. west, Dbetween Sherbrooke and
Dorchester,

St. Charles, offil 779 Charlevoix.

St,  Charles Borrommee, off 53t
Craig.

St. Christophe, off 1602 St, Catherine,

St, Christophe, off 59 Cherrier,

St. Claude, off 1518 Notre Dame,

St. Columban, off 371 Wellington

8t. Constant, now part of Cadieux

St. Cuthbert, off 671 8t. Lawrence

St. David's Lane, formerly St. Hd-
ward, off 1818 Notre Dame,

St. David's Place, at 17 St. David's
Lane.

8t. Denig, off 363 Craig.

St. Denis Lane, near cor. Mignonne
and 8t Denis.

8t. Dizier, off 167 Commissioner.

St. Dominkque, off 480 Craig.

8t Edward, ofi 1656 Bleury.

St. Elzabeth, off 420 Cralg,

St, Elizebeth Lane, off 104 Dufresac.

St, Elei, off 449 8t. Paul.

S5t Emery, off 156 8. Denis,

St.. Etienne, off $06 Wellington:

St. Famille, oft 628 Sherbrooke,

St, Felix, off 2180 Notre Dame;

St, Francois, off Barvack.

St, Prancois Xavier, off 600 Craig,

St Gabriel, off 456 Cralg,

Bt Gabriel Market, cor. Centre and
Richmond,

St. Geneyieve, off 19 St, Antolue.

8t, George, off 2064 8t. Catherine.

Bt, Germain, off 54 Mignonne,

St Helen, off 1815 Notre Dame:

8t. Henry, off 1866 Netre Dame.

St. Henry, now Soulanges.

St, Hubert, off 1620 8t, Catherine.

5t. Hypolite, off 500 Sherbrooke,

St, Hypolite Lane, off 1649 Ontario.

5t lgnace, off 1071 Notre Dame.

St. James, a leading street from the
Court House west below Craig and
St Antoine,

St. James Market, at 1258 Ontario.

St Jean Baptiste, now Duluth Ave,

St. Jean HBaptiste, oif 1626 Notlre
Dame, "

S5t Jean Baptiste Market, at 1007 St
Lawrende.

St. John, off 168 St James.

St, Joseph, now called Notre Dame,

St. Julie, off 88 Bt. Denis,

St. Justin, off 1876 8t Catherine

St. Lambert, off 1650 Nofre Dame,

St, Lawrence, from 500 Craig.

St, Lawrence Market, at 181 8t Law-
rence,

8t. Lwon Lane, at 21 Rolland Lane

St. Louis, off L 8t. Hubert,

St. Luke, off 468 Guy,

St. Margaret, off 508 St. James.

St. Mark off 270 St, Catherine,

St Martin, off 32¢ 8t. Antoifie.

St. Mary, now called Notre Dame

St, Matthew, off 2i63 St. Catherine

St. Maurice, off 170 MeGill.

St. Michael’'s Lane, off 1875 Notre
Danie.

St. Monique, off 43 St, Antoine.

St. Monique Ave., off 10 $t. Monique,

St. Nicholas, off 461 St, Paul.

8t. Patrick, off M7 Wellington.

St, Paul, from Dalliousie Square
west below Notre Dame.,

i
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St, Peter, off 672 Craig.

St. Philip, off 1008 St. Catharine,
8t, Plerre Lane, off 837 Mignoune
£t. Raymond; formerly Gales, off 462
Notre Dame.

St. Roch, off 63 Dufresne.

St. Rosge, off 113 Visitation.

81, Bacrament, off 75 8t. Peter

8t. Sophie, off T48 Craig.

Bt. Sulpice, off 1702 Notre Dame.

81, Therese, off 22 8t. Gabriel,

St. Thomas, off 320 Willlam,

St, Urbain, off 551 Craig,

Bt. Vincent, off 1576 Notre Dame,

Stadacona, oft 112 Marlborough.

Stanley, off 2488 St. Catherine,

Summerhill Ave.. off 21 Cote des
Neiges Road.

Sussex, off 1257 Dorchester.

Suzanne, now part of Poupart,

Sydenham Lane, off 44 Maisonneuve.

Taillefer Ave.,, formerly Poele Lane,
at 11 Rolland Lane,

Tansley, off 100 Delorimier Ave.

Tar Lane, 'off 120 Nazareth,

Tara Hall Ave., off 8t. Urbain Street.

Theatre Laune, off 158 Vitre.

Thistle Terrace, off 128 8t. Monique.

Torrance, off 126 Mountain.

Tower Ave,, off 2723 $t. Catherine.

Trudel Lane, off 334 Richmond.

Tupper, off 8t. Matthew.

Union Ave., off 2178 8t, Catherine.
University, off 2208 St. Catherine.

Upper 8t. Charles  Borrommee, off
436 8t. Lawrence,

Vallee, off 211 St. George,

Vaudreuil, off 265 St. Paul. ,

Versailles, off 248 8t, Antoine.
Victor, off 93 St. Paul.

Victoria, off 2244 St. Catherine.

Victoria. Square, between MeGill and
Beaver Hall Hill.

Viger Sguare, at corner of Cralg and
St Denis,

Visitation, off 1183 Notre Dame.

Vitre, off 14 8t. Denis.

Voltigeurs, off 1045 Notre Dame.

Water, off lower end of Jacques
Cartier.

Wellington, off 52 MeGill,

White's Lane, off 123 Vitre.

Widow's Lane, off 89 St, Rose.

William, off 92 MeGill,

Windsor, off 601 St. James.

‘Winning, at 4 Plateau,

Wolfe, off 1280 Notre Dame.

Woodyard, off 1558 Notre Dame.

Workman, off 56 Canning.

Wrexham Ave., off 241 Guy.

Young, off 239 Wellington.

Youville, off 20 MeGill.

FIRE ALARM.

% General Hospital, Dorchester.

12 Central Fire Station, Cralg.

15 General Hospital, Dorchester.

14 Vitre and Sanguinet,

15 Lagauchetiere and St Lawrence.
16 Dorehester and St Urbain.

17 Dorchester and Bleury:

18 Beaver Hall and Lagauchefiere,
16 Craig and Little St Antoine,

41 Dorehester and Union Avenus,
22 Agqueduct and Overdale Ave.

23 No. 7 Fire Station, 8t. Catherine
24 St, Catherine and St. Lawrence.
25 81, Blizabeth and Dorchester,

i6 St. Catherine and St. Denis

87 No. 6 Fire Station, Ontario and
Avenue de I'Hotel de Ville

28 Sherbrooke and St. Lawrence.
) Mance and Sherbrooke.

%1 Sherbrooke and University.

99 8t, Catherine and McGill College
Ave,

%3 8, Denis and Dorchester.

24 Charbonnean and St Lawrence
35 Shuter and Pringe Arthur.

46 King and Common.

57 Duka and Ottawa,

2% Dupre and Notre Dame.

20 9t. Antoine and Cathedral.

41 No. 4 Fire Station, Chaboillez 8q.
42 No, 3 PFire Station, Wellington
and Dalhouse.
43 Ogilvie's Mills, MIil

Mt Tupper and Sussex.

5 Wellington and McCord.

46 Ottawa and Colborne.

47 MeCord and Notre Dame.

48 Mountain and St. Antoine.

44 St. Catherine and Drummond,
31 Sherbrooke and Pecl

52 Guy and St Antoine.

53 8t Martin and St. James.

7 Notre Dame and Canniog.

55 Chatham and St. Antoine

56 Coursel and TFulford.

57 Seignenrs and William.

58 Mo, 10 Pire Station, St. Cathe-

rine, near Guy.

50 Grey Nunnery, Guy.

fl Canada Sugar Refining. Co.

#2 o, % Fire Station, St. Gabl Mkt
8 G.T.R. Works, Point St. Charles.
f4 Craig and St. Andre.

65 Notre Dame and St Ignace.

i Dorchester and Visitation.

67T Notre Dame and Wolfe.

i85 Roy and Drolet,

Y Sherbrooke and St. Denis.

71 Dorchester and Crescent.

72 Visitation and Cralg.

74 Prince Arthur and Cadieux,

74 8t. Andre and Doreliester.

75 8t, Christophe and De Montigny.

768 No. 11 Fire Station, Ontario and
Beaudry.

77 Amherst and Robin,

T8 St. Patrick, opposite Seigneurs.

79 Ogilvie's Mills, Seigneurs.

81 Visitation and Robin.

52 8t. Catherine -and Panet.

83 Maigonneuve and Dorchester.

8 Logan and Champlain.

8 Champlain and Ontario.

A Wellington and Congregation.

87 Menai and Forfar,

61 No. § PRire Station, Craig and
Gain.

42 Notre Dame and Fullum.

43 Ontario and Fullum.

4 Berri and Lagauchetiere.

05 Montreal Gas Works, East End.

0f Montreal Relling Mills,

97 Shedden Co.'s Stables, William.

112 Notre Dame HRast, opp. Rolland's.

118 Notre Dame and Gale.

114 No. 13 Fire Btation, Desery,

115 Notre Dame, opposite Moreau.

116 Ontario and Moreau.

117 Marlborough and Stadacona.

118 Frontena¢ and Notre Dame.

119 Iberyille and Logan.

121 Parthenais and 83t. Catharine.

122 O.P.R. Tlevator, Dalhousie Sq.

123 Wolfe: and' Lagauchetiere.

124 Dufresne and De Mantigny.

125 8t. Christophe and Ontario.

126 St. Btienne and Wellington,

127 Cherrier and St. Hubert

128 St. Catherine: and Amherst.

120 Macdonald's Tobaceo Works,

141 Eastern Abattoir.

142 St. Paul, opposite Dupre.

134 St. Catherine and Papineau Road.

144 William and Dalhousie

35 MeCord and Seminary.

136 Willilam. and | Guy.

147 Notre Dame and Versallles.

128 8t. James and Versailles,

120 (.P.R. Shops, Delorimier Ave.

141 St. James and Windsor.
142 No. 12 Fire Station, Seigneurs.
143 Notre Dame, near Guy.
144 Simpson and MacGregor.
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45 MeTavish Street Reservoir,

146 St. Catherine and Davidson.

47 C.P.R. Workshops, Hochelaga.

143 Papineau Road, opposite St. Rose.

14) Canada Rubber Works, Notre
Dame,

151 St. Monigue and Lagauchetiere,

152 Mansfield and Dorchester,

133 8t. Catherine and Fort.

154 Windsor and Osborne,

155 Dorchester and St. Mark,

156 Bherbrooke and Mackay.

157 Ontario and 8t. Urbain.

158 Mantha's Mill, St. Charles Bor-
romimee,

159 Civie Hospital, head of Moreau.

161 Wellington and Hibernia,

162 No. 15 Fire Station, Hibernia,

163 Centre and Island.

16t Centre: and Ropery.

165 Wheelhouse, Water Works,

166 Knox and Charlevoix.

167 Wellington and Charron,

168 Cor, Leber and Bourgeois.

169 8i. Catherine and Fullum, Provi-
dence Convent,

171 8t. Patrick and Charlevoix,

172 8t. Patrick and Laprairie.

173 Magdalen and Favard.

171 Exchange Hotel, Mill.

175 Centre and Charlevoix,

176 Grand Trunk and Shearer,

177 G.T.R. Stockyard, St. Etienne,

21 8t. Hypolite and Roy.

212 Napoleon and Cadieux.

213 Duluth and St. Lawrence,

214 Duluth and St. Denis.

215 Banguinet and Rachel.

216 No. 14 FWire Station, S5t, Domi-
nique,

217 8t. Lawrence, opposite Marie
Anne,

218 Avenue de 1'Hotel de Ville and
Marie Anne,

218 Cadieux and Mount Royal Ave,

221°St. Andre near Duluth.

222 No, 16 Fire Station, Rachel.

225 Dufferin and Mount Hoyal Ave.

4 Exhibition Grounds.

225 Park and Milton Avenues,

220" Rachel and Seaton.

227 Sherbrooke and Shaw.

228 Hotel Dieu Hospital.

220 St. Urbain and Prince Arthur.

231 St. Paul, opposite Friponne.

232 St. Louls and Berri,

283 No. 7 Fire Station, Dalhousie =4,

Cralg and Bonsecours.

5 Windsor Hotel,

i Cote and Vitre,

T.e Montigny and Cadieux,

Bonsecours and Notre Dame.

St. Claude and St. Paul.

Court House, Notre Dame.

Notre Dame Hospital.

245 8t. Denis and Carrieres.

446 No: 17 Fire Station, St. Denis.

247 Carrieres and St. Joseph,

248 Rivard and Perreault.

24) Deaf and Dunb Institute, &t

Denis.

No, 2 Fire Station, St, Gabriel.

Z Roy and St., Hubert.

Rivard and Rachel,

Rivard and Marie Anne.

MeGill College.

Grand Seminary, Sherbrooke.

i Mount St. Mary Convent, Guy.

258 Boys' Home. Mountain.

Philosophical Seminary, Cote des

Nelgos,

Mount Royal Ave. and Berri

Marie Anne and LaSalle.

268 2t, Hubert and Belanger,

264 O] Works, Mile End,

2653 St. Zotique and St Hubert,

2tb Labelle and Beaubien,,

271 Avademy St. Louis de Gonzague,
Sherbrooke.

272 Good Shepherd Convent, 500 Sher-
brooke

273 Emily and Cuthhert,

274 Breboeuf and Gilford,

27 Amherst, near St Zotigue, 18
Fire S:ation.

251 St. Hubert and Fleurimont.

282 Bt. Hubert and Comte,

A12 Jacques Cartier Sq. and St Paul.

318 8t. Paul and St. Jean Baptiste.

al4 Notre Dame, op. St Lambert Hill

215 Craig and St, Lambert Hil

310 Dorchester and Shaw.

317 Bt. Catherine and St, Hubert,

318 Bt.  Catherine and Avenues de
'Hotel de Ville,

319 8t.  Catherine and Proyidence
Convent,

: James and Place d'Armes.

2t. Bulplee and Le Royer.

i Place Royale and St, Paul.

Sanguinet and DeMontigny.

St. Denis and Ontario.

Reformatory Prison, DeMontigny.

E Shi-rbrr:mke and Amherst,

FIRE ALARM. (i5]

341 8t. Francois Xavier, opp. Si
Sacrament,

342'8t. Frs, Xavier and Notre Dame.

342 St, James and St. Peter,

244 Fortifieation and St. George.

251 Cralg, opp. St. Alexander.

352 Recollet and St. Helen.

872 Bishop's Palace, Lngaurhetierc.'

374 Little Sisters of the Poor, Seig-
neurs,

374 Ladies’ Benevolent Society, Ber-
thelet.

376 Sacred Heart Convent, St. Alex-
ander,

876 Western Hospital.

412 St. James, op. St. Michael’s Lane,

412 MeGill and Notre Dame,

414 Bt. Henry and St. Maurice.

415 8t. Sacrament and St. Peter,

421 MecGill and St. Paul,

453 Fuund][n& and Port.

424 Dalhousie and Commor.

425 Dom. Transport Co.'s stable, Aun.

431 Youville and St. Peter.

432 Grey Nun and Wellington. -

433 Mill Street, near Black’'s Bridge.

511 Lagauchetiere and Sf. George.

512 8t. Catherine and St. Philip.

513 Ontarie and Bleury,

al4 Berthelet and Aylmer.

515 Sherbrooke and Mountain,

516 8¢, Catherine and Bishop.

517 8t. Luke and St. Mark.

018 Albert and Canming.

519 Notre Dame and Murray.

521 William and Young.

522 Conde and St. Patriek.

523 Lafontaine and Plessis,

b24 Montealm and DeMontigny.

525 Desgery and Stadacona.

526 Poupart and 8f. Catharine.

327 DeMontigny and Plessis.

528 Avenue de 1'Hotel de Ville and
Lagauchetiere,

529 Bast End Electric Station, Water.

531 Delorimier Ave., and Lafontaine.

Gad Delorimier and Ontario.

538 Shaw and DeMontigny.

384 Singer Manufacturing Co., Notre

Dame, 5

535 Mount $t. Louls Institute, Sher-
brooke,

536 Foisy's Piano Factory, Papineau
Ave,

537 Vietoria Hospital.

585 C.P.R. Workshops, Hochelaga.
4l Female Prison.

542 Cotton Factory., Hochelaga.

LOUIS VARY,
CITY JOBBING EXPRESS.

Baggage and Goods of every description called
for and delivered to all parts of the City.

746 LAGAUCHETIERE STREET, - - MONTREAL,

3 doors east from Beaver Hall Hill.

TELEPHONE MAIN 152, .




L6 MURRAY'S ILTLUSTRATED GUIDE.

CONSULATES AND VICE-CONSULATES.

Argentine. Confederation, F.  C:
Henshaw, -«consul ;- I, L. Wanklyn,

8. B. Heward, vice-consul, 30 Bt
Sacramont,
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ALPHABETICAL LIST OF THE CHARTERED BANKS OF

CANADA, AND THEIR HEAD OFFICES.

Bank of British Columbia, London,

Exchange Bank of Yarmouth, Yar-

vice-consul, Montreal Strect Rallway Portugal, F. R. Routh, consul, 195 Eng. mouth, N.S.
Chambers, Place d'Armes Hill. Comissioners. ) Bank of British North America, Lon- Halifax Banking Co., Halifax, N.S.
Austro-Hungarian, Bl Schultzs, Consulat Imperial de Russie, Nico- don, Eng. Tmperial Bank of Canada, Toronto,

comsul-general; 166 MeGill.

Belgian, Jesse Joscph. consul, 180
St, James; P. B. Mathys, vice-con-
sul, 301 £t James.

lag de Struve, Imperial consul, hours
1 s, to 1 pan., 60 Durocher,

Sweden and Norway, Gustaf Gyll-
ing, vice-tonsul, 18 St. Alexis,

Bank of Hamilton, Familton, Ont.

Bank of Montreal, Montreal, Que.

Bank of New Brunswick, 8t. John,
NvB,

Ont.,

Merchant's Bank of Canada, Mout-
real, Que.

Merchants' Bank of Halifax, Halifax,

Chili, George B. Day, consul-gen- Switzerland, D, L. Rey, consul, 14 Bank of Nova Scotla, Halifax, N.8. N.8,
eral, Tmperial bhldg, 107 8t James. Cadieux; Hd. Sandreuter, \‘1034-'-0“' Bank of Ottawa, Ottawa, Ont. Merchants Bank of P.E.1, Charlotte-
sul, Board ef Trade Bldg., 35t. Sacra- 3 Bank of Torento, Toronto, Ont. town, PUE.I.

Dranish, Herman H, Wolff, 170 Me-
Gill,

French consul-general, A. Klecz-
kowski, 99 St. James; consul charge
de la chancellerie, L, Tuchastel de
Montrouge; attache, vicomte H. de
Sainy Phalle.

German Empire, Tranz Bopp.

ment.

Republic of Uruguay, Fred, C.
Hensghaw, vice-consul, Ment, St. Ry.
Chambers, Place d'Armes Hill.

Spanish, Senor Don  Hipolito de
Urlarte Badia, consul-general ; IDon
Rafael de Casares, vice-vonsul, office

Bank of Yarmouth, Yarmouth, N.3.

Banque d'Hoehelaga, Montreal, (ne.

Bangue de St-Jean, St. Johns, Que,

Banque Nationale, Quebee, Que,

Banque de St. Hyacinthe, St, Fya-
cinthe, Que.

Canadian Bank of Commerce, Toron-

Molson’s Bank, Montreal, Que.

Ontarioc Bank, Toeronto, Ont.

People's Bank of Halifax, N.S.

People’s Bank, New Brunswick.

Quebes Bank, Moutreal, Que,

Standard Bank of Canadsa, Toronto,
Ont.

L., consul, 600 Sherbrooke. 27 -8t James. to, Ont. St. Stephens Bank, St. Stephens, N.B.
Greece, J. Ponsonby Sexton, consul- United States consul-general for Commercial Bank of Windsor, Wind-  Summerside Bank, Summerside,
Provinee of Quebec, John L. Bittin- sor, Ont. BT,

general.

Italy, Com. G. Solimbergo, Hoyal
consul-general for Canada, in Mont-
real: J. Internoscia, M.A,, B.O.L;, at-
tarhe {o the vonsulate, 97 St. James;
chevailer ‘A, M. F. Gianclli, honorary
consul, Toronto; vice-consuls, at
Quéebee and  Toronto and  consular
agent at Victoria, B.C.

Netherlands, Karel 0. W, Boisse-
valt, tonsul-general, 201 8t James:

ger: viee and deputy consul-general,
P. Gorman, 260 St. James,

United States of Mexico, D, A. An-
sell, ponsul-general, for Dominion of
Canada, 3) St Sacrament,

United States of Columbia, Ho-
dolphe Lemieux, consul, 1582 Notre
Dame.

Monaco, J. L. Coutlee, consul, Im-
perial bldg., 107 2t. James,

A Geutleman Barber.

Few wmen ave better known among the West End gentry than
Me. Tuomas Surrox, who keeps the Hair Dressing Parlors
at 134 Peel Street. For oyver twenty years. Mr. Svrron
ling been in husiness on the same street within a couple of
blocks of his present quarters. Besides understanding his
husiness thovoughly, M. SurroN can discuss the most im-
portant subjects of the day in a manner that can be excelled
by few. Hiscomparisons are often very oviginal. The author,
for many years has made iba point to consult Mg, SUT10N on

Dominfon Bank, Toronto, Ont,

Eastern  Townships Bank, Sher-
brooke, Que.

Traders Bank of Canada, Toronto, Ont,

Union Bank of Canada, Montreal, Que.

Union Bank of Halifax, Halifax, N.8.

Western Bank of Canada, Oshawa,
Ont.

NORMAN

MURRAY,

JBook, TMews and Zovertising Zgent.

PUBLISHER OF

“Murray’s lllustrated Guide to Montreal,”

21 BEAVER HALL HILL, MONTREAL,

e

847 N.B.—The reader is respectfully requested to mention ' MURRAY'S ILLUS.
TRATED GUIDE TO MONTREAL.” when dealing with the advertisers. So doing will

very important mental ]Jl‘illllCll‘lSA N be beneficial to the reader and the publisher, and agreeable to thosewhoadvertise in the baok,
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FAILED BANKS AND BANKS IN LIQUIDATION.

Agricultural Bank of Upper Canada.. . <. ai vovn oo ae s an o Worthless,

Bark of Acadia, Nova Scoba .. .. ...oee seiwh o sl wden Do.

Bank of Brantford, Onf. .. .. v seee w6 seiae sm mn saiiss s4ss as Do, :
Bank of Canada, Montreal .. .. 4. weiien siles ewiew we s wsls we Do. i
LY R RS T £ 2 T e N e e RN R A A 2 Do. 1
PBank of Liverpool, Nova Scotia, September, 1870, .. .. .. .. .. .. Do, <
Bank of Prince Edward Island, Junpe;, 1882 .. .. oo cv oo eove saiven Do. |
Bank of London, ‘cloged July, 1887 ... .. +v -0 Suius siias aaihe o Do.

Bank of Upner CAITRAR: v« v siiovs ssivs s sires wsices wasve setos we  JLETHAS,

Rangie VilIe Marie ... o s« i ae svsisd inws siias onied seces we WOPLHIEEE. -
Pangie Jacans Cartlel .. .o s vs meeme wroad pasali wlia e Do.

Central Bank of Canada, Toronto, Ont., closed Oet., 1887. .. .. .. Worthless,

Central Bank of New Brunswick, Predericton, closed 1882 .. .. .. Do.

City Bank of Monbttefl .. .o s e sasose mune mhiavn riuds mELEE (e Do,

Colonial Benk of "Canada, "Toronto: ... suee oo se sn e sxiios fa e Do,

Commercial Bank of New Brunswick, July, I868 .. .. .. v o0 =0 os Dao.

Commercial Bank of Manitoba, Winnipeg .. o o o0 oo 20 -0 .. 88 cents

Commercial Bank of Newfoundland ... .. .. .. <« «o ve v +» +« »» Refuse,

Consolidated Bank of Montreal, since May 7, 1890 .. .. .. .. .. .. Worthless.

Exchange' Bank of Canada, Montreal, August, 1883 .. .. .. .. .. Do.

Farmers' Bank of Rustico, PiEEL i wome saias voae sewi sanes - REfUBE,

Farmers' Bank of Toronto, 'Ont. ,. ... .. vu ss we «ess o 5o o00s Worthlees,

Federal Bank of Canada, since May 4, 1893 .. .. . o cs s vn e Do.

International Bank of Canada, Toronto, closed 18653 .. .. .. .. .. Do.

La Banque du Peuple, Montreal .. s.. oo ov v v ssone soo0s oo 55 Refuse,

Marithng: Bank; Sty JobB; JB. i rews weics swivy smiss sems G Do.

Mechanics' Bank of Montreal, August, 1879 .. .. .. .. ++ <. 4. .« Worthless.

Mechatics Bank ofiBE JORN .. o surr wsiion, srine srams mrns mmam Do.

Pietow: Banl; closed MAY, F88T. o wai walia exis vaiws ws v enoes (9D CEDOLE,

Royal Canadian Bank of Montreal ... .. .. e+ +s o4 <s s «s w5 o Worthless,

Stadacona Bank of Quebee, since April 29, 13'31] Sl S e Do.

The Bank of Western Canada . .. :. seien ciren vaies e aa s oo Do. \I
Union Bank of Newfoundland .. .. ... .. 5 S T R R Ll TR ElaEe: By
Westmorland Bank of New Brunswick .. .. .. .. .. .» +» .. .. Worthless, t‘,
Zimmermen's Banly G808 1w wsl siiies cin felvas 4R deaiTies seliasl ashiss o Do. / g

Notes are raised from a smaller denomination to a higher in various
ways : 1st, the fizures in the counters are extracted with a powerful acid,
and figures of a larger denomination are printed in their places. This
can be easily detected, as the letters and figures substituted are of an
inferior quality to that on the balance of the note. 2nd, counters are
torn from genuine motes and substituted for those extracted. This is
known as the pasting process. The alterations can be readily detected by
holding the note to the light, which will at once disclose the parts pasted
on,
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CHRONOLOGY OF CANADA (Condensed).

1482—Columbus discovers the islands
of America,

1497—Cabot discovers the mainland,

1517—Cabot visits Hudson's Bay.

1535—Jacques Cartier ascends the St
Lawrence, (Augnst 10).

1541-43—First attempts at settlement
(unsuccesstul).

1598—Forty Convicts left on Sable I=-
land, only twelve of whom
were found alive five vears
afterwards.

16083—Champlain’s first wvisit.

1605—Port Royal (Annapolis) founded.

1608—Second  yisit of Champlain.
Foundation of Quebee, the first
permanent settlement of Can-
ada.

1613—Foundation of St. John's, New-
foundland,

1622—Jesuits arrive at Quebec.

1629—Queber taken by the British,

1632—Canada and Acadia restored to
France.

1842—Ville Marie (Montreal) founded
by Maisonneuve,

1654—Acadia taken by the British.

1fiT—Acadia restored to France,

1870—Hudson's Bay Co. founded,

1672—Frontenac appointed Gov. of
Canpada (white population about
0,700:)

1680—Massacre of Lachine.

1600—S8ir W. Phipps captures Port
Rovel,

1715—Acadia (Nova Beotia) Hudson
Bay Territory, and Newlound-
land ceded to Britain.

1739—Population of Canada 42,700,

1745—Louisbourg taken by the New
Hnglanders,

T48—Louishourg restored to France.

1749—Halifax founded.

1755—Bxpulsion of Acadians from
Nova Scotia.

1768—Louisbourg recaptured by the
British.

175%—British under Wolf defeat the
French under Montealm on the
Plaing of Ahraham, Quebeec,

1700—Canada (population 70,000) sur-
renders to Britain,

1TT4—""Quebee  Act' pasged, glving
the French-Canadians the free
exercise of the R. €. religion,
and their own civil laws and

cvustoms, and providing for the
administration of the criminal
law as used in England and the
appointment of & Legislative
Coungil by the Crown.

1776—0utbreak of the American Revo-
lutien and invasion of Canada
by the Americans, capture of
Montreal and unsuccessful at-
tack on Quebec.

1776—Americans driven out of Canada.

1783—Second Treaty of Paris and de-
finition of boundary between
United States and Canada. Foun-
dation of St. John, N.B., by U.
H. Loyalists. Population of
Canada about 165,000,

1784—New Brunswick made a separate
nrovinee.

1791—Passage of Canadian Act, divid-
ing Capada into Upper and
Lower Canada.

1792—PFirst meeting of the Parliaments,
of Upper Canada at Newark or
Niagara, and Lower Canada at
Quebee.

17#—8lavery abplished in Upper Can-
aca.

170d—Toronto, then called York,
founded, and is made capital of
Upper Canada in 1796,

1806—Population of Lower Canada
250,000, and Upper Canada 70,718

1812—War between Great Britain and
United States. Detroit eaptured
by the Canadians (Aug. 11).
Battle of Queenstion Heights
(Det. 133:

1815—Toronto captured and burned by
the Americans (April. 25). Bat-
tles of Stony Creek (June 35),
Moraviantown (Sept.), Chateau-
guay (Oet. 26), and Chrysler's
Farm (Nov. 11)

1814—Americans defeated at Lundy's
Lane (July 25)., War ended by
the treaty of Ghent (Dec. 24).
Population of Lower Canada
335,000 and of Upper Canada
5, 000:

1831—FPopulation of Lower Canada
553,184 and of Upper Canada,
236, 702,

1836—Opening of the first railway in
Canada between Laprairie and
St. Johns,
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1537-f—Hebellion of Mackenzle and
Papinean.

1841—Reunion’ of Upper and Lower
Canada and responsible govern-
ment established, First joiut
Parlianient meets at Kingston
(June 13). Population of Lower
Canada 690,000, and of Upper
Canada, 435,000,

1848—8ee Montreal Chronology.

1851—Population of Lower Canada
800,264; of Upper Canada, !
004; of New Brunswick, 193
of Nova Scotia, 276,854

1852—Commencement of the Grand
Trunk Railway.

1858—Ottawa made Capital of Canada.
Decimal system of currency
adonted,

1861—Population of Upper Canada,
1,506,001 ; of Lower Canada,
1,111,560 of New Brunswiclk,
52147 of Nova Scotia, 330,857;
of Prince BEdward Island, SU,-
857,

1866—Fenian Tnvasion of Canada,

1867—The British North America Act
passed by the Imperial Legisla-

ture, efectiug a union of the
Provinces of Canada, Nova
Seotla and New Brunswick under
the name of the Dominion of
Canada, The names of Upper
and Lower Canada to Ontario
and Quebec. Lord Monk is first
Governor-General, Sir Jobn A
Marcdonald (died 1591) first pre-
mier.

1861—First Red River (Riel) Rebel-
llox,

1570—Manitoba admitted to the Con-
foderation:

187T1—HBritish Columbia joins Confede-
ration. Total population of the
Domicion, &, 635,000,

1878—Prince Edward Island joins the
Confederation.

1876—Intercolonial apened froin Que-
bee to Halifax.

188i—Population  of the Dominion
4,324,810,

1885—Second Riel Rebellion. C.P.R.
completed across the continent.

1801—Population of the Dominion,
4,833,230,

ST. JAMES METHODIST CHURCH.

BUSINESS HOUSES OF MONTREAT. Tl

VERDICT WELL MERITED.

ZUHE acme of perfection and good taste in Gents' wearing apparel is

@ shown in the selection of patterns, which FIT REFORM import

each season.  They are Nobby, Genteel and yet Quiet.
Throughout the breadth of the lund in this respeet, verdiet deelares

in favor of
FIT REFORM,

2344 St. Catherine Street, Montreal.

AGENCIES AT e,

Vancouver, B.C. | Brockville, O. | Fredericton, N.B.
Victoria, B C. St. Thomas, O. Woodstock, N.B.
Ottawa, O. Picton, O. Halifax, N.S.
London, O. Orangeville, O. New Glasgow, N.5. |
Guelph, O. St. John, N.B. Troro, N.S.
Kingston, O. ! St. Stephen, N.B. ! Charlottetown, P E.I.




PARISH CHURCH OF NOTRE DAME,

FOR INSURANCE —~==&
OF ALL KINDS, AT LOWEST RATES

APPLY TO

DAVID DENNE,

100 St. Francois Xavier Street, Montreal.

Telephone, Main 220,
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The Public Respectfully Invited to Visit our

Extensive Library.

ALWAYS IIN STOCI

A complete and extensive assortment of hoth miscellaneous
and Catholic works, inelnding the latest American
and Foreign publications.

PRAYER BOOKS

Specially made up for PRESENTATION PURPOSES, being |
handsomely designed and of the highest finish n
STANDARD BINDINGS, imncluding * Two Vonume
CoMBINATION SETe’ (Evistles and Gospels sepavate),
bound in Fine German Calf, French Seal, Turkey
Moroceo, Pearl and Tortoise Shell bindings.

SILVER AND GOLD MEDALS,

Crosses and Crucifixes, in Gold, Silver, Pearl, Fine Ivory, |z
Ehony, Nickel and Bone.

ROSARIES

Tn fine rich Silver Mountings, in Garnet, Coral, Jet, Amber,
Pearl, Agate, nnd Cocon.

Complete Lines of School Stationery.

'So[e], TBIOJ] PUE 'mOnj0AS( ‘mowwlIpeyy 'Asteoriuo)
J0 §x00g 'S0 OUOYIE) PIEpuBIR ‘Ho03y ul SABM[Y

CATHOLIC AND MISCELLANEOUS LITERATURE. |

D. &« J. SADIL.ITER « CO.

Catholic Publishers, Booksellers and Stationers,
Church Ornaments, Vestments, Statuary and Religious Articles.

1662 Notre Dame Street, 123 Church Street,
Half a Block East of the Church of Notre Dame, Two Daors Soath of Queen Strect,
MONTREAL, P.Q. TORONTO, ONT.




BONSECOURS MAR

KET AND BONSECOURS CHURCH.
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BUSINESS IOUSES OF MONTREAL,

Ladies or Gentlemen
Cannot get a Better L

Breakfast, Dinner or Supper

Anywhere at any price, than at
Beau's Arcade Cafe

2336 St. Catherine Street,

~mee[or 25 cents.

You get quantity and quality. . . . .
The very best material, cooked by the very
best cooks and served by attentive and
polite waitresses. .

ONE BLOCK FROM DOMINION SQUARE.
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BUSINESS 1IOUSES OF MONTREATL.

Tourist and Amateur Photographets

will find a full lot of supplies.
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S§T. PETER'S CATHEDRAL,

Properly speaking. tlie Cathedral of St JTames, Dominion Square.

Developing and Printing carefully and
promptly done.

« & Views of City, Etc. 4 £

oSl S

E'.l r Wt Bo BAIKIE’-
2257 St. Catherine Street,
MONTREAL.

| e



CHRIST CHURCH CATHEDRAL (Anglican).
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_ESTABLISHED 1842,

219 St. James Street, MONTREAL.

CONFECTIONERY, COFFEE AND LUNGHEON ROOMS.

Visitors to Montreal will find this a first-Closs Dining Room for Ladies and
Gentlemen. Ladies ean leave their parcels and hand bagaage
here, while doing their shopping in the City.

— e

MANUFACTURER OF

PURE CONFECTIONERY

RETAIL ONLY,

CHAS. M. ALEXANDER, Proptietor.




DOMINION SQUARE AND WINDSOR HCTEL.

R R
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RSHFORD’S
Books, Stationery, and Circulating Library.

AU SR T A%

Gruide Dooks, Unmonnted Photos, Views of Montreal, Photos
of Royalty aul other celebrities.

Standard and Miscellaneous Books. New Books received daily,
mnong them thelatest novels and magazines.

Valwible Books at Reduced Prices.

¢l and Rare Books relating to the Early History of Canada,

Medieal and Surgical Books,

Bibles, Praver, Hymn and other Devotional Dooks, hoth in

Cheap and Finest Bindings.

STATIONERY

OFf all kinds. The Finest Note Papersand Envelopes, as well as the

inferior qualities, sueh us live quires for 25 cents.

LEATHER GOODS.

Purses, Pocket Books aud Writing Cases in all styles.

Prices reasonable.

C. ASHFORD,

800 DORCHESTER STREET.

E3STABLISHED IN 1876. Am— TEL, UP 1342,




ROYAL VICTORIA HOSPITAL.

NELSCN’S MONUMENT,
Jacgques Cartier Square.
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For Books you canno: get anywhere
else, try & & &

NORMAN MURRAY,
21 BEAVER HALL HILL.
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